The Influence of Interior Design on High School Students' Well-being and Stress Perceptions: A

Case Study of The Math Guru Tutoring Studio

Sara Marks

A Thesis

In the Department of

Education

Presented in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements

For the Degree of

Master of Arts (Child Studies)

at Concordia University

Montreal, Québec, Canada

January 2024

© Sara Marks, 2024

CONCORDIA UNIVERSITY School of Graduate Studies

This is to certify that the thesis prepared

By:

Entitled: The Influence of Interior Design on High School Students' Well-being and Stress Perceptions: A Case Study of The Math Guru Tutoring Studio

and submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

complies with the regulations of the University and meets the accepted standards with respect to originality and quality.

Signed by the final examining committee:

_			_ Chair
_			Examiner
_			Examiner
-			_ Thesis Supervisor(s)
-			Thesis Supervisor(s)
Approved	by		
		Chair of Departmen	t

Dean of

ABSTRACT

The Influence of Interior Design on High School Students' Well-being and Stress Perceptions: A Case Study of The Math Guru Tutoring Studio

Sara Marks

This qualitative case study draws upon personal narratives and academic insights from education, psychology, and interior design, offering a comprehensive exploration of the lived experiences of three high school students at The Math Guru tutoring studio, with a focus on how students perceive the studio's distinct interior design in relation to their experiences of school-related stress and learning. Central to this inquiry is a thematic analysis that considers the founder of The Math Guru's interior design intentions and how these design choices resonate with students' perceptions of well-being. The study employs a triangulation approach, with in- depth, semi-structured interviews complemented by on-site photography and observations. The findings illustrate how The Math Guru's interior design, characterized by its aesthetic appeal, comfortable furniture selection, and adaptable spatial dynamics, contributes to students feeling less stressed, more engaged, and generally happier than in their standard school settings. By offering a detailed description of the role of interior design in shaping students' perceptions and experiences of well-being and learning, this research presents The Math Guru's homelike design strategy as an inspirational model for future learning environment design. This study aims to act as a catalyst, encouraging secondary education institutions, along with the educators, designers, and policymakers who shape them, to recognize interior design as a valuable approach to enhancing student wellbeing, particularly in the context of school-related stress.

Acknowledgements

This thesis would not have been possible without Vanessa Vakharia, the founder of The Math Guru. Vanessa, thank you for your endless support, collaborative spirit, and all you have done to make this study possible. Your dedication to improving the lives of students is truly remarkable and I greatly admire the work that you do. Special thanks are also due to the three student participants from The Math Guru, whose willingness to share openly and honestly about their experiences was instrumental to this research.

My immense appreciation and gratitude go to my supervisor, Dr. Miranda D'Amico, for her knowledge, patience, and constant belief in my capabilities. I consider myself extremely fortunate to have had her support and guidance throughout my time at Concordia University. I would also like to thank my thesis committee members, Dr. Elsa Lo and Dr. Marleah Blom for contributing their time and guidance throughout the development of this thesis. Presenting my work to such a distinguished group of women has been a true privilege.

A heartfelt acknowledgement goes to my family, who have been my greatest source of support. There are frankly too many of you to name, but I simply must thank my mom – who has consistently gone above and beyond to help me pursue my passions. Knowing how proud she is of me will always be my biggest motivation.

And finally, to three of my dearest friends, Kennedy Parham, Stephan Adams, and Matt Weisz – thank you for keeping me sane. Your friendships mean the world to me, and I am profoundly grateful for each of you.

List of Figures	viii
List of Appendices	ix
Introduction	1
The Present Study	2
Conceptual Framework	3
Environmental Psychology	3
Attention Restoration Theory	4
The Reggio Emilia 'Third Teacher' Approach	4
Background of the Researcher	5
Literature Review	6
The Prevalence and Impacts of High School-Related Stress	6
The Influence of Learning Environment Design on Student Experiences	
The Role of Interior Design in Enhancing Academic Development	
The Role of Interior Design in Student Well-Being	9
Trends in Contemporary Learning Environment Design	
Décor	11
Colour	
Indoor Plants	
Flexible Spatial Design	14
Flexible Furniture	15
Relaxation Stations	16
The Environmental Competence of Educators	17
Psychological Benefits of Interior Design in Residential Settings	
Research Questions	
Methods	
Research Design	
Case Setting: 'The Math Guru' Tutoring Studio	21
Participants	
High School Students from The Math Guru	
The Founder and Designer of The Math Guru	
Data Collection	
Description of the Physical Learning Environment and Digital Photographs	
Semi-Structured Interviews	

Table of Contents

High School Student Interviews.	24
Founder and Designer Interview	24
On-Site Observations	25
Data Analysis	25
Establishing Credibility	25
Ethical Considerations	26
Findings	26
Comprehensive Description of The Math Guru's Physical Learning Environment	27
Entrance and Front Hallway	27
The Main Studio	29
The Study Lounge	31
Private Tutoring Rooms	35
Findings from the Founder and Designer of The Math Guru	37
Theme 1: The Establishment and Educational Philosophy of The Math Guru Tutoring Studio	37
Appreciating Informal Learning Environments	37
Confronting Institutional Limitations in Public Education Settings	38
Designing The Math Guru as an Authentic Learning Environment.	38
Theme 2: Balancing Academic Achievement and Student Well-being	39
Recognizing and Responding to School-Related Stress.	39
Addressing School-Related Stress at The Math Guru.	39
Theme 3: Intentional Interior Design and its Observed Influence	40
Designing an Informal and Comfortable Learning Environment.	40
Designing a Sensory Engaging and Visually Appealing Learning Environment	41
Designing a Collaborative and Social Learning Environment.	41
Designing an Interactive and Evidence-Based Learning Environment.	42
Findings from High School Students at The Math Guru	42
Theme 1: Student Experiences of School-Related Stress and Coping across Learning Environments	43
Stressors in Educational Settings.	43
Coping Strategies in Conventional School Settings.	43
The Math Guru as a Stress-Free Learning Environment.	
Theme 2: Student Preferences for Visually Engaging and Appealing Learning Environ	
Desire for Enhanced Aesthetic Appeal.	

Colour Preferences	46
Appreciation for Indoor Plants	46
Theme 3: Student Preferences for Collaborative and Comfortable Learning Environme	ents 46
Preference for Collaborative and Inviting Design.	47
Comfortable Seating Concerns.	47
Theme 4: Student Preferences for Personalized Teaching and Supportive Student-Tuto Relationships	
The Effectiveness of Personalized Tutoring Approaches.	49
The Significance of Student-Tutor Relationships	50
Discussion	50
The Influence of Interior Design on Student Well-Being	50
Transforming the Learning Environment with Homelike Interior Design	50
Homelike Interior Design in Educational Research and Practice	52
Deepening Engagement and Interest through Meaningful Décor	52
Fostering Satisfaction and Calm through Color Usage	53
Promoting Positive Emotions through Indoor Plant Incorporation.	53
Encouraging Confidence and Collaboration through Adaptable Spatial Dynamics	54
Providing Physical and Psychological Comfort through Diverse Seating Selection	55
Supporting Relaxation and Social Interaction through Living Room-Style Common Areas.	
Integrating Teaching Approaches and Interior Design: The 'Third Teacher' Concept in Pr	actice
Bridging the Gap: Interior Design Considerations in Standard School Settings	
Addressing Sensory Diversity and Personalization	58
Conclusion	59
Limitations of the Present Study	
Opportunities for Future Research	
References	61
Appendix A	
Appendix B	77
Appendix C	
Appendix D	82
Appendix E	83
Appendix F	84
Appendix G	86

List of Figures

Figure 1 - Entrance to The Math Guru Studio	27
Figure 2 - Calculator Gallery and Inspirational Quotes in Front Hallway	28
Figure 3 - Entry Table Displays in the Main Studio Entrance	28
Figure 4 - The Layout of the Main Studio	29
Figure 5 - Pink Velvet Couches in the Main Studio	29
Figure 6 - Central Tutoring Section of the Main Studio	30
Figure 7 - The 'Tea Wall' in the Main Studio	31
Figure 8 - Supply Cabinet and Decorative Shelving Display in the Main Studio	31
Figure 9 - Olive Green Couch in the Study Lounge	32
Figure 10 - Matching Vanity and Decorative Wicker Shelving Unit in the Study Lounge	32
Figure 11 - Open Concept Layout in the Study Lounge	33
Figure 12 - Framed Whiteboard and Second Decorative Wicker Shelves in the Study Lounge	33
Figure 13 - Yellow Hutch and Wicker Wall Decorations in the Study Lounge	34
Figure 14 - Armchairs and Third Decorative Wicker Shelves in the Study Lounge	34
Figure 15 - Three Variations of the Typical Private Tutoring Room Set-Up	35
Figure 16 - Exemplary Private Tutoring Room	36

Appendix A - Sample Founder/Designer Consent Form	. 74
Appendix B - Sample Parental Consent Form	
Appendix C - Sample Student/Adolescent Assent Form	. 79
Appendix D - Student Interview Guide	. 82
Appendix E - Founder/Designer Interview Guide	. 83
Appendix F - Comprehensive Guide to The Math Guru's Homelike Interior Design	
Appendix G - Executive Summary	. 86

Introduction

Contemporary educational research acknowledges the significant impact of the physical environment on students' attitudes, emotions, and overall well-being (Hughes et al., 2019; Maich et al., 2018; Willis et al., 2019). Despite a growing focus on factors such as classroom lighting and school architecture, the role of interior design in high school learning environments is often overlooked. In today's high school settings, characterized by increasing rates of school-related stress and anxiety, designing an academic haven – a home-away-from-home – emerges as a potential strategy for enhancing student well-being and improving learning experiences (Fathiyah, 2022; Fernández-Sogorb et al., 2021).

Exploring the intricate interplay between physical environments and human emotions, cognition, and behaviour, a compelling body of literature reveals the profound impact our surroundings have on us, with numerous studies illuminating how the interior spaces we inhabit can significantly influence our mental well-being, stress levels, and capacity to cope with challenges (Barrett & Barrett, 2010; Boyce & Ellis, 2005; Fleury-Bahi et al., 2017; Gifford et al., 2011; Ulrich, 1991). In the realm of child and youth studies, learning environments emerge as a prominent source of stress (Fernández-Sogorb et al., 2021; Kouzma & Kennedy, 2004). The prevalence of school-related stress extends across all levels of education, exerting far-reaching repercussions on learning engagement, academic performance, and the well-being of students (Fathiyah, 2022; Pekrun et al., 2011). Thus, when considering young people, who spend a substantial portion of their time within educational institutions, the design of inviting, appealing, and comfortable learning environments may be a potentially critical area of focus.

Interior design is the art and science of developing functional, aesthetically pleasing, and comfortable indoor spaces (National Council for Interior Design Qualification [NCIDQ], 2004).

Most generally, this involves the careful planning of available spaces and strategic placement of both decorative and practical features (NCIDQ, 2004). Of particular interest to this study is the intersection of research in psychology and design, where experts emphasize the pivotal role of interior design in promoting mental and emotional well-being and pinpoint specific design elements that contribute to stress reduction and emotional restoration (Graham et al., 2015; Smith, 1994). Reflecting on interior design in 1969, Neil Postman (as cited in Apps & MacDonald, 2012) commented, "The environment itself conveys the critical and dominant messages by controlling the perceptions and attitudes of those who participate in it" (p. 49). Recent research builds upon this notion by investigating the psychological benefits of interior design in residential and healthcare settings; nevertheless, there remains a noticeable gap in the literature concerning the influence of interior design on students' perceptions of stress in educational contexts (DuBose et al., 2004; Fleury-Bahi et al., 2017; Schreuder et al., 2016). To address this gap, the present study aims to explore how thoughtfully designed learning environments, exemplified by the interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio, might alter high school students' perceptions and experiences of well-being and foster a more positive and relaxed learning environment.

The Present Study

Considering the unprecedented rise in school-related stress among high school students following the COVID-19 pandemic, the present study emphasizes the significance of the physical learning environment in complementing conventional school-based stress reduction strategies (Racine et al., 2020; Rao & Rao, 2021). Despite the abundance of research on the prevalence and impacts of school-related stress and the ever-growing focus on the influence of the physical learning environment on student well-being, there remains a discernible disconnect between these two critical concepts in the existing literature (Anniko et al., 2018; Bandyopadhyay & George, 2020; DuBose et al., 2004; Nieves-Whitmore, 2021). As such, the present case study, centred around The Math Guru tutoring studio, offers a unique and potentially valuable opportunity for exploration into this area.

The central objective of this research is to provide a comprehensive understanding and detailed depiction of how The Math Guru's deviation from conventional interior design fosters a learning environment that is both academically and psychologically supportive. Ideally, inspiring educators, designers, and policymakers to contemplate and embrace more creative approaches to learning environment design across educational contexts (Hughes et al., 2019; Maich et al., 2018; Willis et al., 2019).

Conceptual Framework

The aims of this study are framed around the concepts of environmental psychology, attention restoration theory, and the Reggio Emilia 'third teacher' approach (Gifford et al., 2011; Kaplan, 1995; Miller, 2019). Taken together, these well-established concepts provide credibility for the development of an investigation centred around interior design in the learning environment and its potential impact on school-related stress perceptions.

Environmental Psychology

Environmental psychology is an interdisciplinary field of study that emerged in the 1960s and 1970s, focused on how individuals respond to and are impacted by their surroundings (Fleury-Bahi et al., 2017; Gifford et al., 2011; Ulrich, 1991). Studies in the field of environmental psychology examine how various physical factors, such as spatial layout, colour schemes, and temperature, influence psychological and physiological states (Boyce & Ellis, 2005; Gifford et al., 2011). Considering the present study, environmental psychology serves as an essential framework for investigating how interior design within the learning environment may influence student stress and learning experiences.

Attention Restoration Theory

Cognitive restoration, a key element in enhancing overall well-being, involves a range of psychological processes aimed at ridding the mind of harmful and counterproductive thoughts, such that regaining focus and calmness becomes possible (Kaplan, 1995). Grounded in attention restoration theory, environments are considered restorative when they promote psychological detachment from daily stressors, offer a supportive setting and resources, and enable a person to pay effortless attention to their surroundings (Kaplan, 1995). Intriguingly, the concept of 'favourite places' has been linked to the principles of attention restoration theory (Korpela et al., 2001). An early study by Korpela (1992) into young people's favourite places revealed that these locations were valued for their aesthetic appeal and stress-relieving qualities. When combined with more recent research, Korpela et al. (2001) suggest that a favourite place functions as an environmental facilitator of emotional regulation, offering restorative experiences crucial for positive well-being. This study, drawing from the foundational ideas of attention restoration theory and insights regarding 'favourite places,' aims to explore how specific design elements in The Math Guru learning environment might evoke similar positive responses in students.

The Reggio Emilia 'Third Teacher' Approach

According to the Reggio Emilia approach to education, children and adolescents have the opportunity to learn from three distinct 'teachers': their educators, their peers, and the physical environment itself (Strong-Wilson & Ellis, 2007). Within this framework, the physical learning environment, referred to as the 'third teacher' in Reggio Emilia schools in Italy, is acknowledged for its potential to significantly enhance student learning and overall well-being (Miller, 2019).

Notably, Strong-Wilson and Ellis (2007) believe that the concept of the third teacher has "reconceptualized space as a key source of education provocation and insight" (p. 40). Consequently, the 'third teacher' approach can be seamlessly integrated into the objectives of this study, offering a valuable framework for a deeper understanding of how educators can actively contribute to the design of learning environments that foster positive well-being experiences and perceptions among students (Martin, 2002).

Background of the Researcher

As a master's student in Child Studies with professional experience in various educational contexts, I am deeply interested in addressing the stress that students encounter in their learning environments. This research is not only a professional pursuit but also a personal one. Having personally navigated through the challenges of school-related stress, I have an intimate understanding of the discomfort and unease that can manifest within unwelcoming and institutional classroom settings. This personal struggle, combined with my passion for aesthetics and interior design, has led me to advocate for a more thoughtful approach to the design of learning environments. Central to my research is the belief that thoughtfully designed learning environments can not only inspire and engage students, but also provide substantial support to those struggling with school-related stress.

When contemplating my desire to study the interior design of learning environments, consideration was given to the high school academic settings to which I was personally exposed. In doing so, I often returned to my experiences at The Math Guru tutoring studio and the influence of its founder, Vanessa Vakharia. While my introduction to The Math Guru was as a client in my 2014-2015 school year, as a long-standing source of inspiration for me in the field of inclusive education, my relationship with Vanessa quickly transcended into one centred around

professional development and direction. Recognizing Vanessa's sheer commitment to reducing academic stress and promoting a nurturing learning environment through intentional interior design, The Math Guru studio was deemed an ideal setting for this case study (Simons, 2009).

Notably, due to the existing relationship between the researcher and the research site, specific attention was paid to acknowledging and addressing researcher positionality throughout this study (Creswell, 2007; Mercer, 2007). Practices such as member checking and reflective journaling were used throughout the research process, particularly during processes of data collection and interpretation (Ortlipp, 2008; Patton, 2002; Simons, 2009). These efforts are discussed in further detail in the methods section of the present study.

Literature Review

The Prevalence and Impacts of High School-Related Stress

From early childhood through adolescence, learning is regarded as one of the most critical components of development. As such, experiences of stress within school-related settings can have profoundly adverse effects (Anniko et al., 2018). While some students may find the demands of school and related assessment requirements motivating, for others, these same expectations can quickly accumulate, resulting in experiences of heightened stress and anxiety (Chamberlain et al., 2011; Owens et al., 2014).

A survey conducted by the Institut de la Statistique de Québec (2018) brings attention to the alarming rates of school-related stress, highlighting a significant increase in stress levels among high school students, with 29% reporting high levels of psychological distress during the 2016-2017 school year, as compared to the 21% reported in the initial 2011 study. Additional studies add to these findings, identifying mandatory attendance and the completion of schoolrelated tasks as the most often cited causes of stress in children and young people (Anniko et al., 2018; Fernández-Sogorb et al., 2012).

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic brought about unprecedented challenges, notably impacting the mental health of adolescents. Studies reveal a significant rise in stress and anxiety among young people during this time, with Ellis et al. (2020) reporting that 43% of young Canadians experienced high stress due to the pandemic, particularly concerning its effect on their academics. This increase in stress is consistent across research findings, suggesting that public health measures and the subsequent shifts in adolescents' routines have intensified mental health concerns (Racine et al., 2020; Rao & Rao, 2021). Systematic reviews further support these findings, indicating a detrimental impact of school closures on students' mental health (Best et al., 2020; Ellis et al., 2020).

Significantly, research demonstrates that stress-related emotions, such as worry and dread, have the potential to hinder cognitive functioning in students and impede learning ability (Pekrun et al., 2011; Valiente et al., 2012). Moreover, severe stress impairs executive functioning, compromises working memory, and reduces the ability to sustain focused attention, placing students experiencing elevated stress at a heightened vulnerability to encountering academic difficulties and setbacks in comparison to their less-stressed peers (Cassady, 2004; Owens et al., 2014). This vulnerability often translates into lower academic performance outcomes, increased absenteeism, and an elevated risk of dropping out entirely (Lereya et al., 2019; Pekrun et al., 2011).

Taken together, these insights collectively emphasize the increasing importance of investigating and addressing experiences of school-related stress encountered by students. Within the context of the present study, these findings point to the potential benefit of exploring learning environments intentionally designed to foster both learning and stress reduction (Nieves-Whitmore, 2021).

The Influence of Learning Environment Design on Student Experiences

Classroom architecture and interior design have evolved considerably over the last several decades – moving away from conventional, teacher-focused spaces to more studentcentered and adaptable physical learning environments (Baker, 2012; Chandler, 2009; Donovan et al., 2014). In addition to meeting basic building requirements and regulations, contemporary pedagogical research is increasingly focused on the impact of interior design on academic development and student well-being. These studies explore a wide range of factors, spanning from spatial design and furniture selection to the inclusion of indoor plants and decorative elements (Andrews & Willis, 2019; Barrett et al., 2015; Benade, 2019; Godwin & Kaur, 2021; Hughes et al., 2019).

The Role of Interior Design in Enhancing Academic Development

Emerging research highlights the significant role that physical classroom environments play in shaping academic outcomes. This impact is described to be twofold, starting with the physical standards and structure of the setting and further enhanced by the presence of aesthetic and symbolic elements within the learning environment (Cheryan et al., 2014). Structural components and standards within the environment, such as the layout and quality of furniture, have been closely linked to variations in academic achievement (Baker, 2012; Benade, 2019; Cornell, 2002). Moreover, a comprehensive review of existing literature by Cheryan et al. (2014) reveals the significant role of symbolic features, such as artwork and décor, in fostering student achievement and learning development.

A particularly noteworthy investigation into the effects of classroom design on learning was conducted by Barrett et al. (2015). This seminal study sought to establish if the hypothesized effects of physical classroom design on learning progress could be empirically validated in a real-world educational context. This research focused on the academic progress of 3766 primary school students, in 153 classrooms, across 27 schools in England. The methodology involved a comprehensive survey of both the classrooms and common areas found within each selected school. Following survey completion, researchers assigned ratings to each classroom's design based on features linked to stimulation, individualization, and naturalness (Barrett et al., 2015). Ultimately, the findings of Barrett et al. (2015) underscore that, "There is clear evidence that the physical characteristics of primary schools do impact on pupils' learning progress" (p. 14). This influence was shown to be rather significant, accounting for 16% of the difference in academic progress for students included in this research (Barrett et al., 2015). Despite being based on a younger student sample, the relevance of these findings extends beyond its demographic. Notably, many of the design elements identified as having an influence on students can be easily adopted by educators in practice, including modifications to classroom layout, displays, or wall colours. Echoing findings from research across various age groups, these small and often costeffective modifications have been shown to significantly influence both academic achievement and learning development (Apps & MacDonald, 2012; Barrett et al., 2015).

The Role of Interior Design in Student Well-Being

Academic achievement was once believed to be the most paramount component of the schooling experience, and while there is little speculation over the significance of learning progress and performance, researchers and educators are increasingly focused on students' emotional and mental well-being (Simmons et al., 2014; Willis et al., 2019). The concept of

well-being, although lacking a universally standardized definition, is commonly understood as a holistic construct made up of interrelated capacities that influence a student's overall quality of life (Thorburn, 2015). Accordingly, this review was built on a conceptualization of student well-being related to the "psychological, cognitive, social, and physical functioning and capabilities that students need to live a happy and fulfilling life" (OECD, 2017, p. 61).

Despite increasing recognition regarding the significance of academic well-being, with socio-emotional teaching techniques often being the central focus of these efforts, the capacity of the physical learning environment to positively impact students is often overlooked (Arndt, 2012; Lelli, 2019; Miller, 2019). Addressing this gap in research, Hughes et al. (2019) conducted a qualitative case study to explore the relationship between physical learning environments and student well-being in high school settings. Situating itself within the real-world framework of secondary education and the 'Flying Start' learning reform, this study explored the well-being experiences of 33 students transitioning from middle to high school in Australia. Through the collection of a variety of verbal and visual data, including interviews and student drawings, Hughes et al. (2019) discovered that "feeling happy, feeling safe, feeling comfortable and having friends" were the four main components of well-being most often reported by students (p. 112). Intriguingly, Hughes et al. (2019) highlight that a lack of physical appeal in the learning environment had a particularly negative impact on student well-being perceptions, specifically in relation to classrooms described as "uninvitingly dark and characterless" (p. 112).

Trends in Contemporary Learning Environment Design

Standard school classrooms were originally designed to reinforce the notion that the role of the educator was to transfer their knowledge onto students – with rows of desks and chairs, a blackboard at the front of the room, and attention directed only toward the teacher standing centre stage – this style of learning environment has been considered adequate for generations (Baker, 2012; Burke & Burke-Samide, 2004; Chandler, 2009). Yet, as the field of education continues to evolve, so too does classroom design research and practice (Burke & Burke-Samide, 2004; Chandler, 2009; Donovan et al., 2014). Although the vast majority of interior design efforts remain focused on conventionally academic elements, contemporary research increasingly acknowledges the need for innovative, creatively designed learning environments. These emerging perspectives argue for a shift beyond conventional design elements, advocating for environments that foster more engaging and holistic learning experiences for students (Benade, 2019; Clemes et al., 2016; Donovan et al., 2014; Godwin & Kaur, 2021; Maich et al., 2018).

Décor

The symbolic elements an educator chooses to incorporate into the learning environment, such as decorations and artifacts displayed on walls, bookshelves, and desks, have the power to transform a dull classroom into an engaging and aesthetically pleasing learning environment (Apps & MacDonald, 2012; Fisher et al., 2014). As Weinstein and Woolfolk (1989) stated, "the visual appearance of the classroom can be conceptualized as a nonverbal statement" (p. 384). Recent research demonstrates that young people pay attention to these non-verbal messages; symbolic elements, such as pictures of prominent figures and inspirational posters, can communicate to students whether they will be respected and supported in the learning environment, with implications for educational equity (Cheryan et al., 2014). Most significantly, the use of décor has been associated with improvements in both academic performance and student well-being, indicating that it is more than just a means of adding character or visual appeal to a space (Cheryan et al., 2014; Godwin & Kaur, 2021).

It is important to note that while classroom decoration may benefit student inclusion and academic inspiration, the misuse of décor in classroom design can have a negative effect. This does not imply that decoration should be omitted entirely from classroom design – instead, it should be used purposefully and only after careful consideration (Cheryan et al., 2014; Fisher et al., 2014). Interestingly, Godwin and Kaur's (2021) research suggests that classroom displays and decoration only damage learning when décor is unrelated to curriculum. Significantly, the reported impacts of décor in this study varied greatly between grade levels, suggesting that students in higher grades are better able to focus their attention and, thus, may be less sensitive to the presence of displays and decorations (Godwin & Kaur, 2021). In this regard, Godwin and Kaur's (2021) research suggests it may be considered somewhat paradoxical that our early childhood environments tend to be highly decorated, while standard high school settings often have little to no decoration at all. This contrast highlights the need for a more nuanced and thoughtful approach to interior design in learning environments across all levels of education (Apps & MacDonald, 2012; Fisher et al., 2014).

Colour

The role of colour in design, while often overlooked or misapplied, has considerable influence in the learning environment (Yildirim et al., 2007). The power of colour lies in its ability to shape a student's interpretation of the physical space, eliciting both physiological and psychological responses that subsequently affect concentration and academic performance (Küller et al., 2009; Singh, 2006). It is, however, essential to recognize that there are differing views on the impacts of colour on human emotion and behaviour and that the literature on the effects of colour tends to be contested and inconclusive (Singh, 2006). In research on colour theory, as Singh (2006) articulately explains, "some feel that human responses to colors are

stable, therefore applicable to everyone, whereas others disagree, asserting that responses and preferences to colors vary across culture, gender, and age, among others" (p. 786).

Despite differing views across the literature, more recent research, including studies by Barrett et al. (2015) and Cheryan et al. (2014), share similar findings regarding the use of colour in the learning environment. These studies focus on the specific reactions of students to colour and explore ways to harness these reactions to enhance academic development (Küller et al., 2009). In this context, colour theory suggests that warm tones, including red, orange, and pink, are connected to alertness and stimulation, while cool-toned hues, such as blue, green, and purple, are associated with tranquillity and calm (Yildirim et al., 2007). A key finding from the seminal study by Barrett et al. (2015) suggests that classrooms with light-coloured or white walls, complemented by brightly coloured accent walls, were most strongly associated with enhanced learning outcomes. This study also found that additional colour features in the space, including brightly coloured décor, furniture, and rugs, were further connected to academic success (Barrett et al., 2015).

Indoor Plants

In practice, educators tend to support and promote the use of indoor plants in classrooms, and an increasing body of research suggests that incorporating nature into the learning environment is "helpful for emotional states, attention, mental fatigue, behaviour, and personal health" (Han, 2009, p. 658). Han's (2009) notable quasi-experimental study, for instance, found that in contrast to students in plant-free settings, high school students in classrooms with indoor plants reported a considerably higher sense of comfort, in addition to lower absence and disciplinary records (Han, 2009). Moreover, in a similar quasi-experimental study, the introduction of indoor plants in high school classrooms was also found to positively enhance

student perceptions of the learning environment (Park et al., 2008). In this study, students noted that the presence of plants contributed to a more relaxed and stress-reducing classroom atmosphere (Park et al., 2008). Finally, through the use of a randomized trial involving a junior high school in Norway, Fjeld (2000) further demonstrated the ability of indoor plants to change student perceptions by introducing plants to only half of the classrooms studied. Ultimately, when compared to the control group, students in classes with added indoor plants assessed their learning environments more positively, "including rating the room as more beautiful, brighter, and more comfortable" (Fjeld, 2000, p. 50).

Flexible Spatial Design

Transformations in pedagogical theories and approaches, such as the introduction of student-centred learning, have necessitated modifications in the physical structure of the everyday classroom environment (Donovan et al., 2014; Walden, 2015). Relevantly, one of the most well-known and widely implemented interior design modifications in the field of education has been a shift toward a more flexible learning environment (Cornell, 2002; Kariippanon et al., 2017). Most generally, this entails replacing conventional desks and chairs with an arrangement that offers more variety and adaptability (Kariippanon et al., 2017). For instance, in research by Barrett et al. (2015), breakout spaces, storage systems, and various zones for learning within the classroom served as indicators of classroom design flexibility. This study found that increasing the number of learning zones within the classroom for younger children, while providing a more open environment for older students was associated with academic advancement. In addition, the availability of breakout rooms outside the main classroom was linked to positive learning outcomes across all grades studied (Barrett et al., 2015).

Kariippanon et al.'s (2017) qualitative case study research, investigating the lived experiences of students and educators in recently redesigned primary and secondary schools across Australia, offers particularly valuable insights into the literature on flexible classroom design. By comparing the experiences of students in their original classrooms with flexible redesigns, these researchers specifically explored the associations between flexible classrooms, learning, and well-being. The findings of this study demonstrated that flexible classrooms, with a range of furniture, layouts, and materials, were more beneficial to the physical, social, and emotional well-being of students than their previously 'inflexible' classrooms (Cornell, 2002; Kariippanon et al., 2017). Drawing from these observations and integrating theories of selfdetermination, Kariippanon et al. (2017) concluded that, when designed purposefully, flexible learning environment design can support enhanced learning engagement and student well-being.

Flexible Furniture

High school students are reported to spend up to 8 hours of their school day sitting down; and while recent curricular modifications have sought to reduce the amount of time young people spend sitting, the argument persists that if students are to be seated for such considerable lengths of time, the choice of furniture in the classroom must be of significant importance and employed with careful preparation (Clemes et al., 2016; Pate et al., 2011). Significantly, research into the neurobiological foundations of learning suggests that students learn most effectively when they are in a state of physical comfort – whether that be sitting at a desk, on a sofa, or even on the floor (Arndt, 2012). In practice, this insight has led to the introduction of flexible classroom seating options, ranging from sofas and bean bag chairs to yoga balls and standing desks (Kariippanon et al., 2017; Umeda & Deitz, 2011). According to Kariippanon et al. (2017), flexible furniture options provide students with increased experiences of autonomy and learning

motivation, while also promoting decreased distractions and discomfort. Importantly, the quality of furniture is also a significant factor; furniture that is uncomfortable, institutional, and aesthetically unappealing may be counterproductive and associated with adverse impacts on learning engagement and motivation (Cornell, 2002).

Relaxation Stations

In light of educators' increased recognition of the socio-emotional well-being of their students, the design of learning environments increasingly features specialized areas dedicated to relaxation and restoration (Hughes et al., 2019; Maich et al., 2018). While the terminology used to describe these spaces varies, the physical characteristics and psychological purposes remain the same. For example, Khare and Mullick (2009) advocate for "withdrawal spaces" to aid in student stress reduction and emotional regulation (p. 50), while Maich et al. (2018) employ the term "relaxation station" to describe the same goals (p. 160). To ensure clarity, this review will henceforth use the term 'relaxation station' to refer to these specific areas.

Originally developed as a trauma-informed intervention, relaxation stations have transformed into thoughtfully designed spaces within the physical learning environment, providing comfort and relief for students experiencing worry or school-related stress (Lantieri, 2008). Relaxation stations are most often praised by educators for their minimal cost, straightforward set-up, and design flexibility; nevertheless, thoughtful consideration must still be given to differentiating the space based on the developmental stages of students and the structure of the physical learning environment (Maich et al., 2018). Relaxation stations should be designed with physically comfortable, soft, and accessible furniture, and may also feature pillows, blankets, and natural décor elements, among other cozy and comforting features (Maich et al., 2018). Despite increasing efforts among primary school educators to incorporate relaxation stations into their classroom designs, there appears to be a lack of awareness and understanding of the advantages of these spaces beyond early childhood contexts (Maich et al., 2018). High school educators, in particular, often grapple with the implementation of such spaces in their open-concept and institutional classroom settings (Scanlon & Baker, 2012).

The Environmental Competence of Educators

Research conducted in 1974 by Proshansky and Wolfe (as cited in Martin, 2002) discovered a notable disparity in educational practice, where lesson preparation and completion of curriculum were given a disproportionate amount of attention over the design of the learning environment. Regrettably, for the most part, the same holds true in the educational contexts of today (Lelli, 2019; Nieves-Whitmore, 2021; Wilson & Cotgrave, 2016). Despite the evergrowing body of literature emphasizing the value of interior learning environment design, educational institutions tend to overlook these findings in practice (Benade, 2019; Lelli, 2019). In most classrooms, desks and chairs are individually placed in rows, indoor plants are not included, and research findings surrounding student perceptions, particularly concerning aesthetics, are not practically applied (Chandler, 2009; Walden, 2015). Notably, while the functional aspects of the learning environment are often well-planned, the elements that enhance comfort and visual appeal often receive insufficient attention (Burke & Burke-Samide, 2004; Willis et al., 2019). This common occurrence stands in contrast to research that advocates for a more thorough and thoughtful approach to the design of physical learning environments, taking into account the influence of students' perceptions and preferences on their well-being and learning experiences (Burke & Burke-Samide, 2004; Simmons et al., 2014; Gifford et al., 2011). In an effort to better understand the obstacles to integrating interior design in educational contexts, Martin (2002) explored the degree to which educators actively and purposefully utilized their physical learning environments. This year-long study, involving the observation of 61 in-class lessons and interviews with 39 educators, led to Martin's (2002) classification of three distinct categories of environmental competence. The first group consists of educators who demonstrate a complete lack of environmental competence, appearing entirely unaware of how the physical environment might influence their teaching or students (Martin, 2002). The second group, described by Martin (2002) as having awareness without competence, included educators who are conscious of the influence of the physical environment on their students but are lacking in the knowledge required to effectively redesign their learning environments. Importantly, the final group consisted of educators who were not only aware of the influence of the physical classroom environment, but also actively utilized interior design to enhance their teaching – it is this type of educator that Martin (2002) considered to be environmentally competent – however, findings suggest this level of competence is not as prevalent in practice as one might hope.

The overarching implication of existing research is that until educators view the physical environment as a powerful pedagogical tool, with the potential to positively influence student experiences and outcomes, interior design will likely remain an undirected and underappreciated aspect of everyday education (Cencic, 2017; Lackney, 2008; Martin, 2002).

Psychological Benefits of Interior Design in Residential Settings

Research extending beyond academic contexts indicates that the design of one's home can significantly impact their mental health. Although not commonly referenced in educational research, these studies may offer valuable insights into the potential impact of interior design on student stress experiences (Kearns et al., 2000; Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022). Notably, by identifying the unique characteristics that differentiate the concept of a 'home' from merely a space to reside in, studies in the area of environmental psychology reinforce the ability of the home environment to protect and restore our mental health (Graham et al., 2015; Kearns et al., 2000; Smith, 1994). In distinguishing these concepts, Karjalainen (1993, as cited in Kearns et al., 2000) noted, "house is a material object...home is an emotionally based and meaningful relationship between dwellers and the dwelling places" (p. 398). Within one's residence, the incorporation of appropriate design features, safe and comfortable living conditions, and familiar symbolic elements, are all environmental concepts associated with stress reduction and restoration (Kearns, 2000; Smith, 1994).

The interior design of residential settings, while traditionally overlooked as a conventional stress-reduction strategy, received increased interest in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic (Glynn et al., 2021). Amid the periods of mandatory quarantine, a select number of studies specifically examined the impact of residential interior design on mental health, with some focusing on technical factors, such as temperature and lighting, and others emphasizing the stress-reducing and well-being enhancements of art and nature (Glynn et al., 2021; Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022; Xiao et al., 2022). Particularly noteworthy is qualitative research by Martín López and Fernández Díaz (2022). Based on the premise that prolonged exposure to particular interior design elements can elicit positive emotions, this study sought to integrate the notions of quarantine, mental health, and home design. To achieve this, researchers selected 147 interior designers and interior design hobbyists to complete surveys detailing their colour, fabric, and furniture preferences (Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022). The results of this study are consistent with existing interior design research in both home and school settings (Kariippanon et al., 2017; Maich et al., 2018; Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022; Yildirim et al., 2007).

According to survey responses, among the various design themes investigated, textures, particularly soft fabrics, elicited the most favourable response overall (Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022). With respect to colour preferences, blue, grey, white, beige, and brown were most highly regarded, with participants using the words "pleases" and "soothes" to describe them (Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022, p. 23). Furthermore, participants highly regarded the furniture in the living room, with couches and armchairs eliciting the most positive emotions (Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022). These insights, when considered in combination with the present study, suggest that incorporating elements of residential interior design into high school learning environments may offer a distinct and beneficial approach to enhancing students' perceptions of school-related stress.

Research Questions

Inspired by the insights from the literature review above, the present case study is grounded in three overarching research questions: 1) How do high school students who participate in tutoring sessions at The Math Guru describe their experiences with school-related stress within this uniquely and unconventionally designed learning environment?, 2) Which elements of interior design are specifically recognized by these high school students as having an influence on their school-related stress perceptions and experiences (either positively or negatively), and 3) How might the insights from high school students and the founder of The Math Guru about the studio's interior design contribute to future research and the evolution of learning environment design in practice?

Methods

Research Design

The present study utilizes a qualitative case study methodology to explore the unique interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio and its potential influence on high school students. Following the insights of Simons (2009), a case study is recognized as a valuable resource for this research, offering a deep and authentic understanding of how students perceive and engage with their learning environments (Creswell, 2007). The selection of the case study methodology is rooted in its ability to provide a thorough and detailed account of how various interior design elements, including colour, furniture selection and arrangement, and overall ambiance, contribute to students' experiences at The Math Guru (Creswell, 2007; Simons, 2009). To accurately and comprehensively depict the essence of The Math Guru's learning environment, this study employs a diverse range of data collection methods. These methods encompass digital photography to visually document the interior design elements, in-depth interviews with both students and the founder of The Math Guru, and supplementary on-site observations carried out within the tutoring studio environment (Creswell, 2007; Simons, 2009).

Case Setting: 'The Math Guru' Tutoring Studio

This case study focuses on 'The Math Guru,' a boutique tutoring studio located in uptown Toronto, chosen for its distinctive and deliberate approach to interior design and high school student clientele, making it an information-rich case setting for this study (Patton, 2002). Founded in 2010 by Vanessa Vakharia with the goal of fostering more positive attitudes towards math and science, The Math Guru (2021) was purposefully designed to be a more welcoming and appealing learning environment for its students. As articulated on the studio's website, The Math Guru (2021) studio resembles that of a "coffee-shop-meets-yoga-studio-meets-your-bestfriend's-house" (para. 3). The unique and unconventional physical learning environment at The Math Guru provides a value opportunity to explore how a thoughtful approach to interior design might influence student well-being and academic mindsets, aligning with the objectives of the present study.

Participants

In accordance with the qualitative approach of this study, purposeful sampling was used to identify participants who could provide informed insights and experiences relevant to the research goals (Patton, 2002). Accordingly, three high school students from The Math Guru, as well as the studio's founder, were selected for their distinct perspectives and applicable understandings.

High School Students from The Math Guru

To obtain student-centred perspectives regarding the influence of interior design on school-related stress, three high school student clients from The Math Guru were also recruited. These students met specific eligibility criteria, including enrollment in grades 9-12 during the Winter 2023 semester, consistent attendance at tutoring sessions at The Math Guru, and a willingness to participate in discussions regarding school-related stress. The recruitment process, facilitated through Vanessa's initial identification of potential participants, involved direct communication between the researcher and interested students to ensure informed participation and compliance with ethical standards, including obtaining necessary parental consent and adolescent assent (see Appendix B and Appendix C). To promote confidentiality, Vanessa was not made aware of the specific students ultimately selected to participate.

This case study is enhanced by the participation of three female grade 12 students from different public schools in uptown and downtown Toronto. These students, who have been consistently attending sessions at The Math Guru for periods of 3-4 years, possess a deep understanding of the studio's interior design and its potential influence. Despite their

demographic similarities, these students are believed to bring a diverse array of perspectives to this research. Their detailed insights offer an in-depth exploration into how The Math Guru's unique learning environment has individually influenced their experiences and perceptions of school-related stress.

The Founder and Designer of The Math Guru

Vanessa Vakharia, the founder of The Math Guru, contributes a rich perspective to this study. As a licensed high school math teacher, experienced educator, public speaker and author, Vanessa has a deep understanding of educational dynamics. Therefore, while the focus of this study is primarily student-centred, Vanessa's dual role as both a former educator and founder/designer of The Math Guru offers valuable insights into the relationship between pedagogical practice and learning environment design.

Notably, Vanessa's existing relationship with the researcher allowed for a greatly streamlined recruitment and consent process (see Appendix A). Following ethical approval, Vanessa promptly provided consent and participated in her interview.

Data Collection

Consistent with Stake's (1995) recommendations for comprehensive data collection in case study research, this study adopted a triangulation approach, integrating multiple methods and sources to thoroughly investigate The Math Guru's unique design. This methodological approach was instrumental in facilitating a rich description of the studio's interior design elements and their impact on students.

Description of the Physical Learning Environment and Digital Photographs

The initial phase of data collection involved the creation of a comprehensive description of The Math Guru's physical learning environment (Stake, 1995). This written description was then complemented with a series of digital photographs, capturing the studio's various learning zones and specific interior design elements. Echoing Latham's (2004) assertion, these photographs were deemed crucial in conveying "a sense of the feel and texture of a place or moment with a succinctness that words can rarely achieve" (p. 129). Beyond providing a visual representation of The Math Guru learning environment, these photographs were also integral to data analysis and validation purposes (Latham, 2004).

Semi-Structured Interviews

The primary data source in this study was one-on-one semi-structured interviews conducted with the founder of the tutoring studio and each individual high school student participant (Creswell, 2007). To guarantee the accuracy of records and enable effective data analysis, all interviews were audio-recorded and transcribed (Creswell, 2007).

High School Student Interviews. Each student participant engaged in a 30-minute, oneon-one semi-structured interview (Creswell, 2007). These interviews, while informal in nature, followed a pre-written student interview guide aligned with the study's objectives (see Appendix D). The interviews delved into students' experiences of school-related stress, their perceptions of The Math Guru's interior design, and their comparative experiences within The Math Guru and their standard school classrooms. Key topics included their stress and coping experiences, initial impressions of The Math Guru's design, and suggestions for redesigning standard school classrooms.

Founder and Designer Interview. A separate 60-minute interview was conducted with Vanessa Vakharia, the founder of The Math Guru, to obtain deeper insights into the relationship between learning environment design and student stress. A pre-written interview guide facilitated a detailed discussion surrounding Vanessa's interior design intentions, her observations of student experiences within The Math Guru, and her specific perspectives on the relationship between the studio's interior design and student stress (see Appendix E).

On-Site Observations

To complement and contextualize interview data, on-site observations at The Math Guru were conducted and documented through detailed field notes (Stake, 1995). Conducted over three separate days across a six-month period, these observations contributed to a more comprehensive and valid portrayal of The Math Guru's learning environment (Stake, 1995).

Data Analysis

In this case study thematic analysis was the primary method of interpreting data collected through semi-structured interviews (Creswell, 2007). Following the guidelines laid out by Creswell (2007) and Stake (1995), this analytical approach provided an in-depth exploration of participant perspectives, emphasizing high school students' experiences of school-related stress and the potential influence of specific interior design elements on their well-being and learning perceptions, both within The Math Guru and their standard school settings.

The initial phase of thematic analysis involved detailed coding of interview transcripts, with each individual quote being carefully reviewed and assigned a precise code. These codes were then grouped into broader categories related to the study's key focus on school-related stress and the role of interior design, forming the foundation for emerging themes. As themes emerged, they were continually refined based on relevant connections and patterns. Each theme was then defined and supported with direct quotes from interviews, facilitating a nuanced and insightful discussion of the study's findings (Creswell, 2007; Stake, 1995).

Establishing Credibility

Recognizing the inherent limitations of qualitative research, this case study employed specific strategies to strengthen its credibility. To address researcher subjectivity, memberchecking techniques were employed, involving ongoing engagement with participants throughout the interview process to ensure that emerging patterns accurately reflected their lived experiences (Creswell & Miller, 2000). Additionally, acknowledging the significance of researcher positionality, the researcher engaged in extensive field note-taking and reflective journaling (Cruz, 2015). This process was aimed at maintaining a transparent record of the researcher's evolving thoughts, experiences, and potential biases, particularly concerning their pre-existing relationship with the case setting (Ortlipp, 2008).

Ethical Considerations

To ensure the protection of all participants, attention was given to satisfying all requirements set forth by the Concordia University Human Research Ethics Committee (UHREC). This included acquiring the UHREC Certificate of Ethical Acceptability and implementing a process of informed consent. All participants invited to take part in the study were informed verbally and in writing of the study's objectives, planned data collection, analysis, and storage procedures (Simons, 2009). Moreover, all participants were informed of their right to withdraw from the study at any time (Simons, 2009).

Notably, while consent was granted for the use of 'The Math Guru' and its founder, Vanessa Vakharia's real names, additional measures were implemented to ensure the privacy and confidentiality of all student participants by employing numerical codes, such as 'Student 1 and 'Student 2', from the onset of data collection through to the final write- up (Simons, 2009)

Findings

Through an exploration of The Math Guru's unique approach to interior design, the findings of this case study illuminate the potential role that thoughtful and creative learning environment design can play in shaping high school students' school-related stress perceptions..

Comprehensive Description of The Math Guru's Physical Learning Environment

The Math Guru tutoring studio is divided into three distinct areas, each with its own unique design and function: 1) the main studio, 2) the study lounge, and 3) the private tutoring rooms. Detailed descriptions of each of these areas are provided in the following sections.

Entrance and Front Hallway

The entrance to The Math Guru is distinct, with a door featuring a framed number '2', a framed calculator, and a sign in pastel mint green with golden lettering that reads "Quiet Study Area" (see Figure 1).

Figure 1

Entrance to The Math Guru Studio



Upon entering The Math Guru, students encounter a hallway adorned with wall art. One wall is dedicated to a gallery-style display of framed calculators, while the opposite wall exhibits a series of framed inspirational quotes (see Figure 2). At the end of the hallway are two

distinctively decorated tables, the first of which features a "Welcome to The Math Guru" lightbox sign, a stained-glass lamp, and an assortment of plants, as well as an affirmation board hung above with the phrase 'Chill Hard, Study Harder' written on it (see Figure 3). The second table displays a collection of eclectic objects including a vintage jewelry box, gold mirror, incense, and framed art prints (see Figure 3).

Figure 2

Calculator Gallery and Inspirational Quotes in Front Hallway



Figure 3

Entry Table Displays in the Main Studio Entrance



The Main Studio

Extending from the front hallway, The Math Guru's main studio features a spacious openconcept layout defined by its multifunctional design. The main studio is painted in a pastel colour scheme, with one wall featuring a geometric design and the other one painted in an offwhite tone, a portion of which serves as a whiteboard wall (see Figure 4). The studio is divided into two sections, a casual seating area and a central tutoring zone, with the flooring shifting from hardwood to a patterned rug to help separate these two spaces (see Figure 4).

Figure 4

The Layout of the Main Studio



In the casual seating area, two vintage-style velvet pink couches adorned with throw pillows create a welcoming L-shaped arrangement around a wooden coffee table holding various puzzles, chess boards, and games (see Figure 5).

Figure 5

Pink Velvet Couches in the Main Studio



Adjacent to this informal seating arrangement is the central tutoring section, featuring large, off-white tables surrounded by eclectic wooden chairs. This area is enhanced by a vibrant stained-glass window, white shelves with decorative items, and a piano embellished with indoor plants (see Figure 6).

Figure 6

Central Tutoring Section of the Main Studio



Storage solutions within the main studio are both functional and visually appealing. On one side, a row of shelves displays an assortment of tea-filled tins, with mugs hanging from hooks underneath (see Figure 7). On the opposite wall, a wooden cabinet is neatly organized with educational supplies, ranging from markers to math-themed stickers (see Figure 8). A third shelving unit displays a curated selection of math-**themed artifacts**, books, and merchandise, as well as decorative elements like globes and candles (see Figure 8).

Figure 7

The 'Tea Wall' in the Main Studio



Figure 8

Supply Cabinet and Decorative Shelving Display in the Main Studio



The Study Lounge

The 'Study Lounge' area of The Math Guru functions as both an extension of the main studio area and a dedicated space for informal individual or group studying. At the front of the study lounge sits a vintage olive-green couch, adorned with blue and green cushions, set against a cream-coloured wall embellished with a pink and yellow geometric decal (see Figure 9). In front of the couch is a wooden coffee table, much like in the seating area found in the main studio space (see Figure 9).

Figure 9

Olive Green Couch in the Study Lounge



To the right of the couch is a decorative white vanity table and a matching wicker shelving unit. These pieces display an array of items, including a framed periodic table of elements, a collection of crystals, and various coloured vases and greenery (see Figure 10).

Figure 10

Matching Vanity and Decorative Wicker Shelves in the Study Lounge



To the left of the green couch, the study lounge expands into an open-concept design, characterized by three white walls and one navy blue accent wall (see Figure 11). This section is furnished with three large white tables, each with matching white wooden dining chairs, creating multiple spaces for individual study or group work (see Figure 11).

Figure 11

Open Concept Layout in the Study Lounge



In a continuation of the lounge's decorative theme, a second small white wicker shelving unit adorned with plants and colourful vases is positioned beside the white tables on the right side of the lounge (see Figure 12). Beside this shelving unit a large, framed whiteboard is mounted on the wall (see Figure 12). On the opposite side, against the blue accent wall, stands a vibrant yellow hutch storage cabinet, displaying an array of colourful glass vases and potted plants (see Figure 13). Adjacent to the hutch, a series of woven circular decorations in various sizes adorn the wall above the third white table (see Figure 13).

Figure 12

Framed Whiteboard and Decorative Wicker Shelves in the Study Lounge



Figure 13

Yellow Hutch and Wicker Wall Decorations in the Study Lounge



At the far end of the lounge, wicker armchairs with plush magenta cushions offer a more casual seating option (see Figure 14). These chairs are positioned against a wall of windows with light coral curtains and are accompanied by a small table with an indoor plant and two small vases (see Figure 14). A white floor lamp and a third small white wicker shelving unit, filled with additional greenery and decorative items, complete this area (see Figure 14).

Figure 14

Armchairs and Decorative Wicker Shelves in the Study Lounge



Private Tutoring Rooms

The Math Guru also has several private tutoring rooms, accessible from both the main studio and the study lounge. While each room exhibits its own unique aesthetic, they all adhere to a consistent setup that reflects The Math Guru's overall design approach. As shown in Figure 15, the typical setup in these rooms includes a table with a mix of dining and office chairs, a framed whiteboard, and an informal seating option such as an armchair.

Figure 15

Three Variations of the Typical Private Tutoring Room Set-Up



In order to capture the essence of these individual learning environments, one room adjacent to the study lounge, as shown in Figure 16, has been selected to serve as a representative example of these private tutoring spaces. Central to this room is a large white table complemented by three chairs upholstered in orange velvet fabric, alongside a classic dining chair (see Figure 16). One side of the room features a narrow table adorned with colourful glass vases containing fresh greenery and dried florals, with a white wicker art piece hanging above (see Figure 16). On the opposite wall is a large, framed whiteboard, mirroring the set-ups found in the main studio and study lounge (see Figure 16). The room is completed with a green armchair, a cream-shaded floor lamp, and a small wooden coffee table with a potted plant, all against a wall of windows (see Figure 16).

Figure 16

Exemplary Private Tutoring Room



Findings from the Founder and Designer of The Math Guru

This section presents the findings from an in-depth interview with Vanessa Vakharia, the founder of The Math Guru. Thematic analysis revealed three key themes that emerged from the interview, providing valuable insights into Vanessa's pedagogical philosophy, her holistic approach to education, and the unique design of The Math Guru learning environment. Collectively, these themes provide a comprehensive understanding of Vanessa's strategic interior design approach, aimed at positively influencing students' well-being and learning experiences, particularly in relation to school-related stress.

Theme 1: The Establishment and Educational Philosophy of The Math Guru Tutoring Studio

This theme explores Vanessa's professional journey as an educator, from her early experiences as a tutor to the establishment of The Math Guru. It delves into her appreciation for informal learning environments, the challenges she faced in conventional public education settings, and her desire to create an authentic and personalized learning atmosphere at The Math Guru.

Appreciating Informal Learning Environments. Vanessa's reflections on her initial experiences as a tutor highlighted her profound appreciation for unconventional learning environments, particularly coffee shops. She fondly reminisced about these informal settings:

I ended up like tutoring all the kids in my class, and we would go to like the local coffee shop and you could, at the time, smoke inside, and we would literally sit there for five hours every night just doing homework. Like it was super fun.

Vanessa explained how these experiences reshaped her idea of what a learning environment can be, sharing, "It turned it from something that like you only learn in quiet environments where you have to like not be yourself – to like no! be yourself! smoke your cig, have your coffee, be with your friends, but also learn."

Confronting Institutional Limitations in Public Education Settings. Vanessa's transition into a traditional teaching role revealed a stark contrast between her informal experiences and the rigid structure of the public education system. She described this phase of her career as a period marked by an ongoing struggle to adapt her dynamic teaching approach to the inflexible institutional norms and specific hurdles of the public-school where she worked:

It was like a complete shit show. Like...that exact type of school building, where there's so much red tape, and like, you have to watch out, but also, like, the school environment is so not conducive to learning...There were too many structures in place, the environment was gross. And like I tried to do my best, but like...a school environment like that doesn't account for different learning styles or anything like that.

Designing The Math Guru as an Authentic Learning Environment. Vanessa founded The Math Guru with the intention of creating a unique learning environment, distinct from the impersonal nature of standard school settings. She expressed her desire to design a space that was reflective of her personal style: "I always wanted it to be really authentic, because schools are so inauthentic... Whereas I'm the teacher here, this is my studio, I wanted it to reflect my personality." Vanessa specifically emphasized the "study lounge" in her studio as a manifestation of this philosophy, describing it as a collaborative, "boho chic" styled area that mirrors both her personality and teaching methods (see Figure 9). Vanessa's commitment to personalization, however, was not established without its challenges, as she recounted feedback from parents who initially misinterpreted the studio's interior design as catering exclusively to female students, emphasizing, "I did tutor mostly girls at first, but it's designed after my own style. There's no gender assigned to it."

Theme 2: Balancing Academic Achievement and Student Well-being

This theme addresses Vanessa's holistic approach to education at The Math Guru, with a particular emphasis on student well-being. It encompasses her observations of school-related stress, strategies for integrating well-being with academic success, and efforts to create a more comfortable and supportive learning environment.

Recognizing and Responding to School-Related Stress. Drawing from her interactions with students at The Math Guru, Vanessa highlighted the persistent stress and anxiety she observes among high school students: "I actually think students have always been really stressed about school, like always. Like, they'll tell me about how everyone's crying before an exam, or they got a bad test grade." She also noted evolving perceptions surrounding school-related stress, stating, "I think like 10 years ago, it was a joke to be like, I have math anxiety, or like, anxiety is affecting my performance, whereas now it's very well recognized that anxiety will directly impact your performance in school."

Addressing School-Related Stress at The Math Guru. Vanessa's approach to addressing school-related stress among students at The Math Guru is proactive, as she explained, "We just assume now that every student is anxious, and every student has like, school-related anxiety. So, I think it helps us be like more cognizant of it." Vanessa described this holistic method as blending academic instruction with a commitment to nurturing students' well-being, emphasizing the connection between mental states and learning ability:

My approach from the beginning has been like, I'm not just tackling math content, I'm tackling mindset...If you just think about it, like if you're super stressed about something you

can't function, right, like you, if you're in fight or flight mode, you're not going to be like, let me solve this quadratic equation.

Vanessa also highlighted her commitment to making The Math Guru a comfortable learning environment for students facing stress, adding, "What better a stage to be in than comfort to actually then go learn something you're already stressed about?"

Theme 3: Intentional Interior Design and its Observed Influence

This theme explores Vanessa's intentional approach to the interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio, exploring how her design choices reflect her pedagogical beliefs and contribute to a learning environment that aims to be more inviting and engaging than standard school settings.

Designing an Informal and Comfortable Learning Environment. Vanessa discussed her observations of anxiety and apprehension among new students at The Math Guru, attributing these feelings to their negative preconceptions about learning environments:

Like students will often say, especially new students, I was really nervous to come to tutoring, because like...there is a stereotype that it's just going to be some disgusting studio, or it's going to just be your school again! Like, it's going to be this stuffy place. And most tutoring centres are like that.

She described The Math Guru's interior design as a conscious effort to positively transform students' perceptions, stating, "Most teenagers have never been in a space like this, so like...it allows them to build a whole new identity around learning." Vanessa described her interior design approach as drawing inspiration from environments she considers to be relaxing, such as her own home, yoga studios, and coffee shops, along with the integration of specifically soothing elements such as "incense" and "crystals" (see Figure 3 and Figure 10). She explained these

strategies, along with practices like offering students a cup of tea during their sessions, as part of her effort to create a calming atmosphere at The Math Guru.

Designing a Sensory Engaging and Visually Appealing Learning Environment.

Vanessa emphasized her sensory-focused approach to the interior design of The Math Guru, stating, "It's like a holistic view of education and holistic means that like, all of our senses are engaged." She attributed this approach to her personal mindfulness practices and belief in the stress-reducing benefits of sensory engagement:

If I'm ever really stressed at home the first thing I need to do is like... I need to be looking at a clean space, I need to be looking at something pleasing. I need things to smell good. And like that relaxes me so much. So, I know that it has that effect.

Vanessa elaborated on her sensory engaging design efforts within The Math Guru, referencing soft fabrics, pops of colour, and unique auditory experiences such as "Taylor Swift power hour" on Tuesdays – all aimed at fostering a calming and stimulating learning environment.

Designing a Collaborative and Social Learning Environment. Vanessa highlighted her commitment to fostering a collaborative learning environment at The Math Guru, rooted in her belief that "learning is communal." She explained how this principle shaped the studio's layout, opting for group tables and couches arranged openly instead of traditional desks and chairs (see Figure 6 and Figure 11). Vanessa also discussed the importance of spatial dynamics in enhancing learning engagement, drawing from her own observations of student interactions:

I think seeing how students use the space was the first impetus for being like, oh, we should get different tables, or we can like, you know, move things around...Like how do we maximize the space to accommodate more students without causing distractions?

Vanessa also compared the studio's environment to a coffee shop, noting its positive impact on student engagement: "Like imagine a coffee shop where everyone's sort of talking, but like you're doing your own thing, and you feel like you're in this collective social environment, even though you're doing work."

Designing an Interactive and Evidence-Based Learning Environment. Beyond her own observations, Vanessa also discussed integrating contemporary educational research into The Math Guru's design. She described being particularly inspired by "Building Thinking Classrooms" by Peter Liljedahl, referring to it as "the biggest book in education right now," and highlighting its influence on her incorporation of "framed whiteboards at each table" (see Figure 13 and Figure 16). Reflecting on this addition of whiteboards throughout the studio, Vanessa shared, "It's incredible to watch how many students will get really excited to do a math question if they can just get up and do it on the board...Like it creates this whole other layer." She also noted that whiteboards encourage students to embrace mistakes as part of learning, explaining, "Because what can you do with a whiteboard? You can just like, erase it so quickly."

Findings from High School Students at The Math Guru

This section outlines the findings obtained from interviews with three high school students, focusing on their personal perceptions and experiences within the physical learning environment of The Math Guru tutoring studio. Through thematic analysis, four distinct themes have emerged, highlighting a stark contrast between students' perceptions of their standard school settings and those of The Math Guru. These themes incorporate various factors related to students' experiences in these different learning environments, ranging from their strategies for coping with school-related stress to their interior design preferences.

Theme 1: Student Experiences of School-Related Stress and Coping across Learning Environments

This theme explores the ways in which students navigate school-related stress, with a particular focus on the increasing academic pressure they face as they advance through grades and the range of strategies they use to cope. It also compares students' perceptions of stress in their standard school settings with their notably less stressful experiences at The Math Guru.

Stressors in Educational Settings. All three students reported experiencing schoolrelated stress, particularly regarding assessments and future academic plans. Student 1 indicated, "Most of my stress comes from like, evaluations and like, assessments and that kind of thing." This student also highlighted the significance of having alternative testing environments specified in their Individualized Education Plan (IEP) to minimize stress and distractions during tests or exams. The impact of classroom settings on stress levels was also noted by Student 3, who commented, "I feel like certain classrooms are more stressful and like, and then some that are less stressful." Notably, school-related stress was described to escalate with advancing grades. Student 2 shared, "I feel like stress about school has definitely gone up since like, I've been in the higher grades," while Student 3 similarly added, "I think now it's a lot more stressful considering it's grade 12."

Coping Strategies in Conventional School Settings. Students shared a range of strategies for managing stress within their standard school settings. Student 1 explained their method of taking short breaks outside the classroom: "I usually go for a walk...Sometimes I'll go like an extra couple laps around just to like, collect myself, decompress a little." While Student 3 underscored the relief they find engaging in informal, non-academic conversations, underscoring their appreciation for casual, social spaces:

Where I eat lunch and stuff, like I'm never stressed out there...It's just like at the end of one of the hallways where all my friends eat lunch and it's like, I think that like relieves my stress because you can like talk about things that are not school related.

In contrast, Student 2 expressed a resigned attitude, remarking, "I kind of just deal with it. Like there's nothing much I can do, I guess." This student highlighted their preference for addressing stress outside of school and suggested the need for designated relaxation areas within the school itself, envisioning "a spot in the school where like people could just relax and chill instead of freaking out." Similarly, Student 3 noted an absence of calm study areas within their school, mentioning, "We don't really have anywhere that is like a quiet place to work...There is the library and stuff, but there is always like presentations going on in there."

The Math Guru as a Stress-Free Learning Environment. All three students described The Math Guru as a significantly less stressful learning environment in comparison to their standard school settings. Student 1 and Student 3 both described their learning experiences at The Math Guru as completely free of stress, with Student 1 emphasizing this absence of pressure even in challenging situations: "I don't think I've ever been stressed at that place ever. Even if I have like a test the next day." Similarly, Student 3 shared, "I don't think I've ever been stressed out at The Math Guru. I think it's really helpful. I've always liked it there." Furthermore, Student 2 noted, "I'm definitely less stressed when I'm at The Math Guru."

Theme 2: Student Preferences for Visually Engaging and Appealing Learning Environments

This theme outlines students' perceptions of their standard school settings compared to their experiences at The Math Guru, focusing on the influence of specific aesthetic elements on their well-being and learning experiences. Furthermore, it details students' dissatisfaction with the uniformity and institutionalized nature of their standard school settings in contrast to their appreciation for the visually appealing and colourful interior design of The Math Guru. Moreover, it underscores students' specific desire for the inclusion of indoor plants within their learning environments.

Desire for Enhanced Aesthetic Appeal. The students consistently described their standard school classrooms as uninspiring and institutional. Student 2 conveyed their disappointment with their school's design, remarking, "Everything is really just bland. Like white walls, blue chairs, grey desks, there's nothing like very special about it." Student 3 echoed this sentiment, noting their classroom's isolated layout and lack of engaging elements: "All the desks are like separate, like each desk on their own. It's pretty like dull. The walls are normally just white. And then that's it."

Conversely, The Math Guru was continually praised by students for its engaging and visually appealing learning environment. Student 2 emphasized the warm and welcoming atmosphere of the studio, drawing a sharp contrast to their standard school setting: "It's just the entire aura of it. Like there's just so many differences like, the design of The Math Guru, like, I feel like you feel like you're not like, in this like cold, dark classroom." This perspective was reinforced by Student 3, who described The Math Guru's learning environment as notably more inviting than other tutoring centers they had attended:

Other places I've been to, they are kind of a lot more, I don't know, like scary, and like more dull. But The Math Guru just looks like it should not be a tutoring place...I feel like it's a more like happy vibe.

Student 1 shared a similar experience, specifically noting their initial fascination with The Math Guru's distinctive furnishings: "I remember I went, and I just like, like there's pink couches. And

45

like, they have tea on the wall. And like, it's just like, it smells nice... and I think that was like my first impression" (see Figures 5 and 7).

Colour Preferences. The colourful and vibrant ambiance of The Math Guru was described by students to positively enhance their overall learning experience. Student 3 conveyed this influence, expressing, "I feel like it's just nicer to be in a space that's not like super ugly... It just feels like brighter, like better for your mood too. Because I feel like most places are pretty, like colourless." Similarly, Student 2 contrasted the soothing colour palette of The Math Guru with the dullness of their standard school classrooms, stating, "The Math Guru is more, it's very colourful and, like...the colours, they are just not like a plain classroom, like...they just like feel very comforting" (see Figure 4 and Figure 11).

Appreciation for Indoor Plants. A profoundly positive regard was expressed by students for the presence of plants within their learning environments, noting improvements in both visual appeal and emotional well-being. In discussing the inclusion of indoor plants at The Math Guru, Student 2 succinctly stated, "There are plants, and like plants are like, proven to like make you happy" (see Figure 12 and Figure 15). This appreciation for indoor plants was similarly expressed by Student 1, who was particularly enthusiastic about their biology teacher's initiative to introduce them into the classroom, adding, "I think that once that happens, it's going to be a lot more of a less sterile vibe in the lab, which I'm excited for. Like, it also like, makes the air feel lighter with some plants." Student 3 also expressed a desire for the incorporation of nature into their standard school setting, sharing, "I feel like having like green, like plants would be a nice aesthetic they could add."

Theme 3: Student Preferences for Collaborative and Comfortable Learning Environments

This theme illustrates the student's appreciation for comfortable and collaborative learning environment design, as reflected in their preferences for the spatial dynamics and furniture within The Math Guru. It highlights how comfortable, interactive furnishings, such as communal tables, framed whiteboards, and diverse seating choices, impact students' academic experiences – drawing a comparison between the comfort of The Math Guru and the discomfort experienced in their standard school settings.

Preference for Collaborative and Inviting Design. The students expressed a strong preference for The Math Guru's collaborative approach to interior design. Student 3 specifically valued the studio's communal furniture arrangements, noting, "I like how the tables there are not just like alone and so a lot more people can work at them" (see Figure 6 and Figure 11). Acknowledging the interactive nature of The Math Guru's design, Student 1 commended the inclusion of whiteboards at each table, commenting, "I love the way that they have the like whiteboard set up there with the like big picture frames...when I was doing a lot of like math and stuff, that was my favourite" (see Figure 13 and Figure 16). Student 2 also expressed a positive view of The Math Guru's unconventional layout, describing their rewarding experience with a group exam preparation session: "When I did my exam prep, like...it was really great because it wasn't like a classroom setting...It didn't feel like I was in school." Similarly, Student 1 indicated that the inviting ambiance of The Math Guru was a key factor in their decision to enroll, referencing the initial description they read on the studio's website and stating, "It's more like your friend's basement or something like that."

Comfortable Seating Concerns. All three students emphasized the significant impact of furniture on their learning experiences, with a particular focus on the role of seating selection in either enhancing or hindering their ability to concentrate and learn effectively. Student 1 shared

their frustration with the quality of seating in their standard school setting, explaining, "I get distracted very easily at school. So, like if my chair creeks or like, you know when one leg of the desk is like shorter than the other ones...when that happens, it's like the whole period is ruined." In contrast, they also recalled a more positive experience at The Math Guru, where a similar issue was promptly addressed, recounting, "my tutor was like, 'you're not going to focus,' and then she switched the chair for me...and I think we told [the receptionist] that, that chair was wobbly." This student also recalled a preference for bean bag chairs offered in one of their previous classrooms:

Those were my favourite, I would always race to class to try to get a beanbag chair. And, like, I don't know, it was just like very fun to sit in them and a lot more comfortable because school chairs are not very comfortable (see Figure 5 and Figure 6).

Resonating with this sentiment, Student 3 expressed the need for "comfier places to sit" in their standard school setting. Students 1 and 2 even fantasized about incorporating bedroom furniture into their classroom settings. Student 2 elaborated on this idea:

I actually do a lot of homework in my bed if I'm gonna be honest, because I work like really well if I'm like sitting on something soft instead of like sitting in a chair, because like I don't have a very long attention span, so it's easier for me to just like, chill and do it, instead of like sitting there being uncomfortable.

Both of these students also expressed their admiration for the informal seating area in the main studio of The Math Guru (see Figure 5). Student 2 expressed a desire to see a similar area incorporated into their standard school environment, while Student 1 consistently praised "the pink couches" as a distinctly appreciated aspect of The Math Guru's learning environment (see Figure 5).

Theme 4: Student Preferences for Personalized Teaching and Supportive Student-Tutor Relationships

This theme explores students' appreciation for the individualized teaching strategies offered at The Math Guru and reflects on the uniquely informal and approachable relationships between students and tutors, differentiating these experiences from the more formal dynamics typical in their standard school settings. The relationship between The Math Guru's vibrant interior design and its effective teaching approaches is also noted.

The Effectiveness of Personalized Tutoring Approaches. All three students expressed their profound appreciation for the personalized teaching methods offered at The Math Guru. Student 2 specifically recognized the distinct advantages of tutoring when compared to traditional classroom instruction, remarking, "Obviously, having a tutor is like different than being in a classroom, like...how the tutors teach I would say like, they're very like, understanding...they would like specialize homework for me if I needed extra help or something like that." Student 1 also recounted positive learning experiences resulting from their tutor's effective approach:

I had grade 11 functions and like, I could be confused the whole week and then see my tutor, and she would just like explain an entire week's worth of learning to me in like one hour. And it was like amazing, and just so helpful.

Notably, Student 3 drew a connection between The Math Guru's vibrant interior design and their tutoring experience:

It's like it's so colourful there and everything, they have so much stuff going on, like games and stuff, and then they're also just more helpful. Like, it is a tutoring place I guess, but they're more like, helpful and like directed towards you, which is nice. The Significance of Student-Tutor Relationships. The supportive and personal connections formed between students and their tutors at The Math Guru was also a recurrent theme across interviews. Student 1 expressed deep appreciation for their tutor, stating, "My tutor is like, like, my favourite person ever...I look forward to seeing her every week." Student 2 spoke to the informal and approachable nature of interactions at The Math Guru, noting, "The people at The Math Guru. I feel like you can just talk to them...Instead of at school. It's like a little more weird." In a similar manner, Student 3 discussed the increased comfort they felt in seeking academic assistance at The Math Guru, sharing, "I feel like I'm more comfortable to ask them questions and stuff, compared to school."

Discussion

The Influence of Interior Design on Student Well-Being

The Math Guru represents a thoughtful approach to interior design that prioritizes student well-being and contributes to a less stressful educational experience, reflecting contemporary trends in learning environment design and increasing focus on psychologically supportive and student-centred approaches. (Arndt, 2012; Hughes et al., 2019; Maich et al., 2018; Lelli, 2019; Scanlon & Baker, 2012; Willis et al., 2019). The interior design at The Math Guru is particularly aligned with key aspects of student well-being outlined by Hughes et al., (2019) incorporating elements that promote happiness, comfort, and interaction. In the present study, students expressed feeling less stressed, more engaged, and generally in a better mood at The Math Guru than in their standard school setting, highlighting how the studio's interior design significantly contributed to their satisfaction with academic pursuits.

Transforming the Learning Environment with Homelike Interior Design

The Math Guru represents a strategic and creative shift from standard school settings to a learning environment that mirrors the comfort of a thoughtfully designed home. Distinctly diverging from the sterile and uninspiring atmospheres of conventional classrooms – which students associate with increased stress and academic pressure – The Math Guru seeks to reshape student perceptions by providing an aesthetically pleasing and adaptable space conducive to more relaxed and enjoyable learning experiences (Andrews & Willis, 2019; Bandyopadhyay & George, 2020; Weinstein & Woolfolk, 1981).

The potential for The Math Guru's interior design to enhance student well-being is deeply rooted in the principles of environmental psychology, highlighting the significant impact of physical spaces on mental perceptions (Fleury-Bahi et al., 2017; Gifford et al., 2011; Ulrich, 1991). Furthermore, it aligns with key aspects of cognitive restoration, as discussed by Korpela (1992) and Korpela et al. (2001), suggesting that certain environments can promote psychological detachment from stress. The Math Guru's interior design, featuring cozy furnishings, soothing colour schemes, and the incorporation of greenery, reflects these theories, potentially providing a restorative sanctuary for students experiencing school-related stress, similar to a 'favourite place' (Kaplan, 1995; Korpela et al., 2001).

At the heart of The Math Guru's interior design approach is the creation of a learning environment that resonates with Smith's (1994) concept of a home as a psychologically nurturing haven, offering warmth, support, and comfort. In line with more recent research on the psychology of residential design, which underscores the role of familiar and comfortable settings in enhancing mental health, this notion suggests that The Math Guru's residential-style layout, cozy furnishings, and curated collection of décor can positively impact student perceptions and contribute to an atmosphere conducive to relaxed and engaged learning (Glynn et al., 2021; Graham et al., 2015; Martín López & Fernández Díaz, 2022; Xiao et al., 2022).

Applying these frameworks to the objectives of the present study, The Math Guru's homelike approach to interior design emerges as a potentially powerful model for redesigning learning environments (Korpela et al., 2001; Smith, 1994; Weinstein & Woolfolk, 1981). The warm and welcoming design of The Math Guru tutoring studio fosters a comforting and inviting atmosphere, allowing students to feel at ease and engage in learning with a more focused and positive mindset (Fleury-Bahi et al., 2017; Kaplan, 1995; Kearns et al., 2000; Korpela et al., 2001; Smith, 1994; Ulrich, 1995).

Homelike Interior Design in Educational Research and Practice

Central to this case study research is the objective to provide a detailed and practical understanding of how interior design might be utilized to address school-related stress. In this sense, the homelike design approach of The Math Guru offers valuable insights, ideally inspiring educators, designers, and policymakers to explore designing learning environments that promote more positive experiences for high school students. Aligning with this study's objectives, the following section provides a detailed examination of The Math Guru's interior design approach, connecting specific design elements with existing research on learning environment design and student well-being (Arndt, 2012; Barrett et al., 2015; Benade, 2015; Hughes et al., 2019; Kariippanon et al., 2017; Lelli, 2019; Simmons et al., 2014). Complementing this discussion, an evidence-based guide inspired by The Math Guru's approach can be found in Appendix F.

Deepening Engagement and Interest through Meaningful Décor. The Math Guru's carefully curated use of décor, contrasting with uninspiring standard school settings, fosters an interactive and inviting learning environment. By incorporating elements that are not only

visually appealing but also functionally and thematically supportive of the learning process, such as artistically framed whiteboards and collections of math-themed artifacts, The Math Guru embodies Godwin & Kaur's (2021) principle of design relevance. Student feedback reveals their admiration for this decorative approach, acknowledging both The Math Guru's aesthetic appeal and engaging influence. Consistent with Cheryan et al.'s (2014) and Fisher et al.'s (2014) findings, the present study suggests that the incorporation of artistic elements and educational displays in The Math Guru enriches the learning environment and fosters a deeper level of learning interest.

Fostering Satisfaction and Calm through Color Usage. This study emphasizes the significant role of colour in influencing students' psychological responses (Küller et al., 2009; Yildirim et al., 2007). Aligning with Barrett et al.'s (2015) recommendations for well-being-focused learning environment design, The Math Guru's colourful interior design creates a visually pleasing and soothing setting for students. By strategically employing a combination of pastel tones with brighter accents, The Math Guru not only offers aesthetically pleasing surroundings to its students but also fosters a setting conducive to enjoyable learning and positive mental states (Barrett et al., 2015; Küller et al., 2009). These insights indicate that simple incorporations of colour, such as painting an accent wall or adding a vibrant area rug, can greatly improve student engagement and attitudes toward learning (Barrett et al., 2015; Walden, 2015).

Promoting Positive Emotions through Indoor Plant Incorporation. Students at The Math Guru profoundly appreciate the presence of indoor plants, acknowledging the aesthetic appeal of greenery and its contribution to increased happiness. These insights align with extensive research on the restorative effects of nature, particularly reflecting Park et al.'s (2008)

study on the correlation between indoor plants and stress levels among high school students (Fjeld, 2000; Han, 2009; van den Berg et al., 2017). The diverse selection of plants at The Math Guru – including large potted houseplants and small succulents – seemed to resonate with students, prompting them to express a desire for similar integration into their standard school settings. Accordingly, this study advocates for the integration of indoor greenery as an effective and accessible strategy for enhancing aesthetics and student well-being in standard school environments. The findings suggest that even small strategically placed plants can significantly enhance the learning environment and positively influence student experiences within it (Fjeld, 2000; Han, 2009).

Encouraging Confidence and Collaboration through Adaptable Spatial Dynamics. The spatial design of The Math Guru, characterized by its open floor plans and reconfigurable furniture arrangements, is a testament to the shift towards more flexible and student-focused learning environments (Benade, 2019; Chandler, 2009; Kariippanon et al., 2017). Contrasting sharply with the rigid, teacher-centric setups of standard school settings, The Math Guru's spatial design is inherently welcoming and adaptable, empowering students to engage with learning in ways that suit their individual preferences and needs (Benade, 2019; Kariippanon et al., 2017). Research indicates that such flexible spatial dynamics create a less intimidating environment, instilling the confidence in students at The Math Guru to actively participate in collaborative learning and seek academic support (Andrew & Willis, 2019; Benade, 2019; Kariippanon et al., 2017). Research by Barrett et al. (2015) further reinforces this notion, suggesting that a mix of open and private spaces, akin to The Math Guru's layout, significantly enhances students' comfort in engaging in discussions and accessing academic assistance.

Providing Physical and Psychological Comfort through Diverse Seating Selection. The Math Guru's choice of furniture is both creative and effective, incorporating a diverse range of vintage-style velvet sofas and various wooden dining sets that support the studio's emphasis on adaptability (Benade, 2019; Kariippanon et al., 2017). Students at The Math Guru notably prefer these diverse seating options, echoing Bandyopadhyay and George's (2020) finding that students seek a mix of formal and comfortable seating in their learning environments. The incorporation of comfortable furniture garnered particularly positive feedback from students, suggesting that these furnishings not only offer physical comfort but also contribute to psychological well-being (Cornell, 2002; Kariippanon et al., 2017; Umeda & Deitz, 2011). The findings of this study are consistent with existing research on the advantages of flexible furniture, supporting the notion that The Math Guru's diverse and high-quality furniture selection plays a role in enhancing student concentration and autonomy (Cornell, 2002; Kariippanon et al., 2017; Umeda & Deitz, 2011). Thus, while the distinct pink velvet couches at The Math Guru may not be practical in standard school classrooms, this study strongly reinforces the significance of offering ergonomic and diverse seating choices in educational settings to facilitate positive and uninterrupted learning experiences (Benade, 2019; Cornell, 2002; Hughes et al., 2019; Kariippanon et al., 2017; Willis et al., 2019).

Supporting Relaxation and Social Interaction through Living Room-Style Common Areas. At the heart of The Math Guru lies a living room-style common area, combining the studio's unique layout and furniture selection to create a central space for relaxation and socialization. This inviting and comfortable space plays a pivotal role in promoting open communication and casual conversations, which help students at The Math Guru effectively

employ their preferred social strategies for managing school-related stress (Anniko et al., 2018; Arndt, 2012; Ellis et al., 2020).

Interestingly, by blending the comfort-oriented design elements typical of early childhood classrooms with the specific social-focused needs of high school students, the design of this communal living room-like area uniquely aligns with recommendations from Maich et al. (2018) and Scanlon and Baker (2012) regarding the integration of 'relaxation stations' into secondary school learning environments (Anniko et al., 2018). Moreover, it reflects research on the psychological benefits of residential design, emphasizing that homelike environments can effectively promote supportive social interactions (Graham et al., 2015; Kearns et al., 2000; Smith, 1994). This residential concept is evident in The Math Guru, where the informal setup of couches encourages opportunities for relaxed interactions and conversations outside of formal tutoring sessions, providing students with a space to alleviate stress (Anniko et al., 2018; Lelli, 2019; Scanlon & Baker, 2012).

Recognizing that curriculum demands may restrict the feasibility of replicating a living room-style setup in standard high school settings, this study suggests repurposing underutilized spaces, such as the hallways where students informally gather or eat lunch, into thoughtfully designed relaxation stations. As noted by Hughes et al., (2019) these informal areas are essential in students' daily experiences and have the potential to be transformed into nurturing, student-centred spaces, supporting efforts to reduce school-related stress.

Integrating Teaching Approaches and Interior Design: The 'Third Teacher' Concept in Practice

The Math Guru distinguishes itself not only with its unique interior design but also through its high-quality teaching and the close connections fostered between tutors and students. Drawing from environmental psychology and the insights of Weinstein and Woolfolk (1981), it becomes evident that interactions within the physical learning environment have a significant impact on student perceptions of that setting. Therefore, when interpreting the findings of this study, it is crucial to recognize that while The Math Guru's inviting interior design may play a substantial role in enhancing well-being and learning experiences, positive student perceptions of the physical space are likely influenced by the personalized and supportive tutoring provided. Student preferences for both the teaching methods and interior design at The Math Guru underscores the importance of considering interior design as a complement to educational strategies, rather than a standalone solution; both elements must collectively be understood and applied to promote an effective and supportive learning environment for students (Miller, 2019; Strong-Wilson & Ellis, 2007).

Analyzing The Math Guru's interior design approach through the 'third teacher' framework, as articulated by Strong-Wilson and Ellis (2007), demonstrates the connection between the physical learning environment and pedagogical practices. At The Math Guru, the inviting and adaptable interior design not only complements but also enhances the capacity of tutors to provide personalized and attentive support, thus positively impacting students' overall perceptions. These insights offer valuable direction for future learning environment design, indicating that thoughtful interior design approaches when integrated with high-quality teaching, have the potential to contribute to more relaxed and engaging academic experiences for high school students.

Bridging the Gap: Interior Design Considerations in Standard School Settings

When considering the feasibility of The Math Guru's homelike interior design approach across diverse learning environments, it is essential to recognize the inherent structural limitations of certain settings. Notably, The Math Guru, functioning as a private tutoring studio, embodies a degree of adaptability in design not commonly found within public-school systems. Educators working within these contexts face constraints due to larger class sizes, demanding curriculum, and limited budgets, which hinder their capacity to modify their learning environments (Apps & MacDonald, 2012).

In response to these barriers, this study advocates for the introduction of simple yet effective interior design approaches within standard school settings, such as the incorporation of small indoor plants and individually painted accent walls. These strategies are not only impactful but also likely feasible within conventional constraints. Additionally, while this study encourages educators to explore creative solutions to integrating interior design within budgetary limits, it also acknowledges the essential role of policymakers in providing the necessary support and funding for these initiatives (Cheryan et al., 2014).

Addressing Sensory Diversity and Personalization

When considering the integration of interior design into standard school settings, it is crucial to address the challenge of meeting the diverse preferences, expectations, and needs of students. The Math Guru demonstrates a uniquely personalized and sensory-rich approach to interior design that benefits its students profoundly. However, applying certain elements of this approach in larger, more diverse public-school settings is expected to be a complex task (Barrett et al., 2015; Benade, 2019; Cheryan et al., 2014; Godwin & Kaur, 2021). Unlike private tutoring environments where students enroll voluntarily, public-schools cater to a broad student population, placing educators at an increased risk of alienating students if their personal design tastes do not resonate (Cheryan et al., 2014; Godwin & Kaur, 2021). Thus, incorporating personalized and sensory-rich interior design into these public-school settings demands a

particularly thoughtful, nuanced approach (Barrett & Barrett, 2010). This study advocates for ongoing research into universally accessible sensory-rich design strategies, emphasizing student participation to ensure they are tailored to varied needs and preferences.

Conclusion

This case study on The Math Guru tutoring studio's distinctive, homelike interior design provides profound insights into the transformative influence of the physical learning environment on the well-being and academic experiences of high school students. The research highlights the benefits of creating a learning environment that diverges from conventional educational settings by incorporating colourful aesthetics, indoor plants, comfortable furniture, and communal areas. These findings suggest that such a welcoming and appealing atmosphere not only contributes to less stressful academic experiences but also enhances students' engagement, mood, and ability to cope. Therefore, this study not only contributes to existing literature but also calls for continued research into more student-centered and well-being-focused interior design approaches. It advocates for a reimagining of educational spaces to better meet the holistic needs of students, envisioning a future where high school learning environments are designed to support both the psychological and academic success of students.

Limitations of the Present Study

While this research provides detailed insights into the interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio, it also has inherent limitations. The study's focus on a singular, private studio setting may not fully encapsulate the varied complexities of diverse learning environments. Specifically, the adaptable nature of a private tutoring studio compared to public education environments may pose challenges in terms of replicability and feasibility. Additionally, the qualitative case study methodology, while instrumental in capturing students' lived experiences, inherently involves a degree of subjectivity (Simons, 2009). While this approach aligns with the study's aim to understand the school-related stress perceptions of high school students at The Math Guru, it may not represent the broad array of student experiences. Notably, the exclusively female participant pool in this study suggests that the findings might not fully capture the variety of perspectives or preferences that students of other gender identities may have towards the physical learning environment. The limited number of participants in the present study further narrows the transferability of findings. Finally, the lack of a longitudinal perspective limits insights into the long-term effects of The Math Guru's interior design on student well-being.

Opportunities for Future Research

These limitations present opportunities for future research, exploring how learning environments might be more thoughtfully designed to better support student well-being and decrease school-related stress. Future studies could extend these findings by examining the incorporation of similar homelike interior design elements in varied educational contexts, focusing on a broader range of participants and using more experimental and longitudinalfocused methodologies. Such research efforts might offer a deeper and more evidence-based understanding of the applicability and scalability of The Math Guru's homelike approach.

Ultimately, the key objective of this study, and perhaps therefore, subsequent research and practice, is to inspire more strategic and creative uses of interior design in the physical learning environment. The hope is that this case study on The Math Guru and its interior design acts as a catalyst for change, advocating for the reconsideration and redesign of physical learning environments that better align with the needs of our stressed-out students.

References

- Andrews, K., & Willis, J. (2019). Imaginings and representations of high school learning spaces:
 Year 6 student experiences. In H. Hughes, J. Franz, & J. Willis (Eds.), *School spaces for student wellbeing and learning* (pp. 77–95). Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-6092-3 5
- Anniko, M. K., Boersma, K., & Tillfors, M. (2018). Sources of stress and worry in the development of stress-related mental health problems: A longitudinal investigation from early- to mid-adolescence. *Anxiety, Stress, & Coping*, 32(2), 155– 167. https://doi.org/10.1080/10615806.2018.1549657
- Apps, L., & MacDonald, M. (2012). Classroom aesthetics in early childhood education. *Journal* of Education and Learning, 1(1), 49–59. https://doi.org/10.5539/jel.v1n1p49
- Arndt, P. A. (2012). Design of learning spaces: Emotional and cognitive effects of learning environments in relation to child development. *Mind, Brain, and Education*, 6(1), 41–48. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1751-228x.2011.01136.x
- Baker, L. (2012). A history of school design and its indoor environmental standards, 1900 to today. In *National Clearinghouse for Educational Facilities* (No. 888-552–0624).
 National Institute of Building
 Sciences. http://architecturalnetworks.research.mcgill.ca/assets/nationalinstituteofbuildin gsciences-min.pdf
- Bandyopadhyay, A., & George, A. (2020). Interior design considerations to enhance student satisfaction in classrooms. *PEOPLE: International Journal of Social Sciences*, 5(3), 676– 687. https://doi.org/10.20319/pijss.2020.53.676687

Barrett, P., & Barrett, L. (2010). The potential of positive places: Senses, brain and spaces. *Intelligent Buildings International*, 2(3), 218–228. https://doi.org/10.3763/inbi.2010.0042

- Barrett, P., Davies, F., Zhang, Y., & Barrett, L. (2015). The impact of classroom design on pupils' learning: Final results of a holistic, multi-level analysis. *Building and Environment*, 89, 118–133. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.buildenv.2015.02.013
- Benade, L. (2019). Flexible learning spaces: Inclusive by design? New Zealand Journal of Educational Studies, 54(1), 53–68. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40841-019-00127-2
- Best, L. A., Law, M. A., Roach, S., & Wilbiks, J. M. P. (2021). The psychological impact of COVID-19 in Canada: Effects of social isolation during the initial response. *Canadian Psychology*, 62(1), 143–154. https://doi.org/10.1037/cap0000254
- Boyce, W. T., & Ellis, B. J. (2005). Biological sensitivity to context: I. an evolutionary– developmental theory of the origins and functions of stress reactivity. *Development and Psychopathology*, 17(2), 271–301. https://doi.org/10.1017/s0954579405050145
- Brooks, S. K., Webster, R. K., Smith, L. E., Woodland, L., Wessely, S., Greenberg, N., & Rubin, G. J. (2020). The psychological impact of quarantine and how to reduce it: Rapid review of the evidence. *The Lancet*, 395(10227), 912–920. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0140-6736(20)30460-8
- Burke, K., & Burke-Samide, B. (2004). Required changes in the classroom environment: It's a matter of design. *The Clearing House: A Journal of Educational Strategies, Issues and Ideas*, 77(6), 236–240. https://doi.org/10.3200/tchs.77.6.236-240
- Bucholz, J. L., & Sheffler, J. L. (2009). Creating a warm and inclusive classroom environment: Planning for all children to feel welcome. *Electronic Journal for Inclusive Education*.

2(4), 1–13.

https://corescholar.libraries.wright.edu/cgi/viewcontent.cgi?article=1102&context=ejie

- Cassady, J. C. (2004). The impact of cognitive test anxiety on text comprehension and recall in the absence of external evaluative pressure. *Applied Cognitive Psychology*, 18(3), 311– 325. https://doi.org/10.1002/acp.968
- Cencic, M. (2017). To what extent do school leaders in Slovenia understand physical school environments as a learning factor? *Center for Educational Policy Studies Journal*, 7(2), 141–162. https://doi.org/10.26529/cepsj.174
- Chamberlain, S., Daly, A. L., & Spalding, V. (2011). The fear factor: Students' experiences of test anxiety when taking a-level examinations. *Pastoral Care in Education*, 29(3), 193– 205. https://doi.org/10.1080/02643944.2011.599856
- Chandler, W. L. (2009). "A" teacher space or a learner place?: Reconsidering the classroom environment. *The International Journal of Learning: Annual Review*, 16(9), 261– 268. https://doi.org/10.18848/1447-9494/cgp/v16i09/46594
- Cheryan, S., Ziegler, S. A., Plaut, V. C., & Meltzoff, A. N. (2014). Designing classrooms to maximize student achievement. *Policy Insights From the Behavioral and Brain Sciences*, 1(1), 4–12. https://doi.org/10.1177/2372732214548677
- Clemes, S. A., Barber, S. E., Bingham, D. D., Ridgers, N. D., Fletcher, E., Pearson, N., Salmon, J., & Dunstan, D. W. (2015). Reducing children's classroom sitting time using sit-tostand desks: findings from pilot studies in UK and Australian primary schools. *Journal of Public Health*, 38(3), 526–533. https://doi.org/10.1093/pubmed/fdv084

Cornell, P. (2002). The impact of changes in teaching and learning on furniture and the learning environment. *New Directions for Teaching and Learning*, 2002(92), 33–42. https://doi.org/10.1002/tl.77

- Creswell, J. W. (2007). *Qualitative inquiry and research design: Choosing among five approaches* (2nd ed.). Sage Publications, Inc.
- Creswell, J. W., & Miller, D. L. (2000). Determining validity in qualitative inquiry. *Theory Into Practice*, *39*(3), 124–130. https://doi.org/10.1207/s15430421tip3903_2
- Cruz, L. (2015). Self-reflexivity as an ethical instrument to give full play to our explicit and implicit subjectivity as qualitative researchers. *The Qualitative Report*, 20(10), 1723–1735. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2015.2353
- Donovan, L., Green, T. D., & Mason, C. (2014). Examining the 21st century classroom:
 Developing an innovation configuration map. *Journal of Educational Computing Research*, 50(2), 161–178. https://doi.org/10.2190/ec.50.2.a
- DuBose, J., MacAllister, L., Hadi, K., & Sakallaris, B. (2004). Exploring the concept of healing spaces. *HERD: Health Environments Research & Amp; Design Journal*, 11(1), 43–56. https://doi.org/10.1177/1937586716680567
- Ellis, W. E., Dumas, T. M., & Forbes, L. M. (2020). Physically isolated but socially connected:
 Psychological adjustment and stress among adolescents during the initial COVID-19
 crisis. *Canadian Journal of Behavioural Science*, 52(3), 177–
 187. https://doi.org/10.1037/cbs0000215
- Fathiyah, K. N. (2022). Academic stress and its sources among junior high school students. *Proceedings of the International Seminar on Innovative and Creative Guidance*

and Counseling Service (ICGCS 2021), 657, 129-141.

https://doi.org/10.2991/assehr.k.220405.023141.

- Fernández-Sogorb, A., Sanmartín, R., Vicent, M., & Gonzálvez, C. (2021). Identifying profiles of anxiety in late childhood and exploring their relationship with School-Based distress. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 18(3), 1– 15. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph18030948
- Fisher, A. V., Godwin, K. E., & Seltman, H. (2014). Visual environment, attention allocation, and learning in young children. *Psychological Science*, 25(7), 1362– 1370. https://doi.org/10.1177/0956797614533801
- Fjeld, T. (2000). The effect of interior planting on health and discomfort among workers and school children. *HortTechnology*, 10(1), 46–52. https://doi.org/10.21273/ HORTTECH.10.1.46
- Fleury-Bahi, G., Pol, E., & Navarro, O. (2017). Introduction: Environmental psychology and quality of life. In G. Fleury-Bahi, E. Pol, & O. Navarro (Eds.), *Handbook of Environmental Psychology and Quality of Life Research*(pp. 1–8).
 Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-319-31416-7 1
- Gifford, R., Steg, L., & Reser, J. P. (2011). Environmental psychology. In P. R. Martin, F. M. Cheung, M. C. Knowles, M. Kyrios, L. Littlefield, J. B. Overmier, & J. M. Prieto (Eds.), *IAAP handbook of applied psychology* (pp. 440–470). Wiley Blackwell. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781444395150.ch18
- Glynn, L. M., Davis, E. P., Luby, J. L., Baram, T. Z., & Sandman, C. A. (2021). A predictable home environment may protect child mental health during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Neurobiology of Stress*, 14(100291), 1-7. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ynstr.2020.100291

- Godwin, K. E., & Kaur, F. (2021). The decorated learning environment: Simply noise or an opportunity for incidental learning? *Proceedings of the Annual Meeting of the Cognitive Science Society*, 43, 2087–2093. https://escholarship.org/uc/item/7h57r7r8
- Graham, L. T., Gosling, S. D., & Travis, C. K. (2015). The psychology of home environments: A call for research on residential space. *Perspectives on Psychological Science*, 10(3), 346– 356. https://doi.org/10.1177/1745691615576761
- Han, K. T. (2009). Influence of limitedly visible leafy indoor plants on the psychology, behavior, and health of students at a junior high school in Taiwan. *Environment and Behavior*, 41(5), 658–692. https://doi.org/10.1177/0013916508314476
- Hughes, H., Franz, J., Willis, J., Bland, D., & Rolfe, A. (2019). High school spaces and student transitioning: Designing for student wellbeing. In H. Hughes, J. Franz, & J. Willis (Eds.), *School Spaces for Student Wellbeing and Learning* (pp. 97–119).
 Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-6092-3 6
- Institut de la statistique du Québec. (2018). Enquête québécoise sur la santé des jeunes du secondaire 2016-2017: Résultats de la deuxième edition. In *Institut De La Statistique Du Québec* (TOME 2, 189). Gouvernement du Québec. https://statistique.quebec.ca/en/fichier/enquete-quebecoise-sur-la-sante-des-jeunes-du-secondaire-2016-2017-resultats-de-la-deuxieme-edition-tome-2-ladaptation-sociale-et-la-sante-mentale-des-jeunes.pdf
- Kaplan, S. (1995). The restorative benefits of nature: Toward an integrative framework. *Journal of Environmental Psychology*, 15(3), 169–182. https://doi.org/10.1016/0272-4944(95)90001-2

Kariippanon, K. E., Cliff, D. P., Lancaster, S. L., Okely, A. D., & Parrish, A. M. (2017).
Perceived interplay between flexible learning spaces and teaching, learning and student wellbeing. *Learning Environments Research*, *21*(3), 301–320. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10984-017-9254-9

- Kearns, A., Hiscock, R., Ellaway, A., & MaCintyre, S. (2000). "Beyond Four walls". The psycho-social benefits of home: Evidence from west central Scotland. *Housing Studies*, 15(3), 387–410. https://doi.org/10.1080/02673030050009249
- Khare, R., & Mullick, A. (2009). Incorporating the behavioral dimension in designing inclusive learning environment for autism. *International Journal of Architectural Research*, 3(3), 45–64. http://dx.doi.org/10.26687/archnet-ijar.v3i3.189
- Korpela, K. M. (1992). Adolescents' favourite places and environmental self-regulation. *Journal of Environmental Psychology*, *12*(3), 249–258. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0272-4944(05)80139-2
- Korpela, K. M., Hartig, T., Kaiser, F. G., & Fuhrer, U. (2001). Restorative experience and selfregulation in favorite places. *Environment and Behavior*, 33(4), 572– 589. https://doi.org/10.1177/00139160121973133
- Kouzma, N. M., & Kennedy, G. A. (2004). Self-reported sources of stress in senior high school students. *Psychological Reports*, 94(1), 314–316. https://doi.org/10.2466/pr0.94.1.314-316
- Küller, R., Mikellides, B., & Janssens, J. (2009). Color, arousal, and performance-A comparison of three experiments. *Color Research & Application*, *34*(2), 141– 152. https://doi.org/10.1002/col.20476

Lackney, J. A. (2008). Teacher environmental competence in elementary school environments. *Children, Youth and Environments*, 18(2), 133– 159. http://www.jstor.org/stable/10.7721/chilyoutenvi.18.2.0133

Lantieri, L. (2008). Building inner resilience. Reclaiming Children & Youth, 17(2), 43-46.

- Latham, A. (1992). Researching and writing everyday accounts of the city: An introduction to the diary-photo diary-interview method. In C. Knowles & P. Sweetman (Eds.), *Picturing the Social Landscape: Visual Methods and the Sociological Imagination* (1st ed., pp. 117–131). Routledge. https://doi-org.lib-ezproxy.concordia.ca/10.4324/9780203694527
- Lelli, N. K. (2019). Physical classroom environment and anxiety: Primary school teachers' consideration of their physical classroom environment. In G. Geng, P. Smith, P. Black, Y. Budd, & L. Disney (Eds.), *Reflective Practice in Teaching*.
 Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-9475-1_27
- Lereya, S. T., Patel, M., dos Santos, J. P. G. A., & Deighton, J. (2019). Mental health difficulties, attainment and attendance: A cross-sectional study. *European Child & Adolescent Psychiatry*, 28(8), 1147–1152. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00787-018-01273-6
- Maich, K., Davies, A. W. J., & van Rhijn, T. (2018). A relaxation station in every location. *Intervention in School and Clinic*, 54(3), 160–165. https://doi.org/10.1177/1053451218767916
- Martin, S. H. (2002). The classroom environment and its effects on the practice of teachers. *Journal of Environmental Psychology*, 22(1–2), 139– 156. https://doi.org/10.1006/jevp.2001.0239

- Martín López, L., & Fernández Díaz, A. B. (2022). Interior environment design method for positive mental health in lockdown times: color, textures, objects, furniture and equipment. *Designs*, 6(2), 1–30. https://doi.org/10.3390/designs6020035
- Mercer, J. (2007). The challenges of insider research in educational institutions: Wielding a double-edged sword and resolving delicate dilemmas. *Oxford Review of Education*, 33(1), 1–17. https://doi.org/10.1080/03054980601094651
- Miller, V. (2019). Creating the third teacher through participatory learning environment design:
 Reggio Emilia principles support student wellbeing. In H. Hughes, J. Franz, & J. Willis (Eds.), *School Spaces for Student Wellbeing and Learning* (pp. 239–258).
 Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-6092-3 13
- National Council for Interior Design Qualification. (2004). NCIDQ Definition of Interior Design. In *NCIDQ*. https://asidmd.tripod.com/Legislation/id_definition_07-2004.pdf
- Nieves-Whitmore, K. (2021). The relationship between academic library design and library anxiety in students. *Portal: Libraries and the Academy*, *21*(3), 485–510. https://doi.org/10.1353/pla.2021.0027
- OECD. (1997). PISA 2015 Results (Volume III): Students' Well-Being. PISA, OECD Publishing. https://doi.org/10.1787/9789264273856-en
- Ortlipp, M. (2008). Keeping and using reflective journals in the qualitative research process. *The Qualitative Report*, *13*(4), 695–705. https://doi.org/10.46743/2160-3715/2008.1579
- Owens, M., Stevenson, J., Hadwin, J. A., & Norgate, R. (2012). When does anxiety help or hinder cognitive test performance? The role of working memory capacity. *British Journal* of Psychology, 105(1), 92–101. https://doi.org/10.1111/bjop.12009

- Park, S. Y., Song, J. S., Kim, H. D., Yamane, K., & Son, K. C. (2008). Effects of interior plantscapes on indoor environments and stress level of high school students. *Journal of the Japanese Society for Horticultural Science*, 77(4), 447– 454. https://doi.org/10.2503/jjshs1.77.447
- Pate, R. R., Mitchell, J. A., Byun, W., & Dowda, M. (2011). Sedentary behaviour in youth. *British Journal of Sports Medicine*, 45(11), 906–913. https://doi.org/10.1136/bjsports-2011-090192
- Patton, M. Q. (2002). *Qualitative research & evaluation methods* (3rd ed.). Sage Publications, Inc.
- Pekrun, R., Goetz, T., Frenzel, A. C., Barchfeld, P., & Perry, R. P. (2011). Measuring emotions in students' learning and performance: The achievement emotions questionnaire (AEQ). *Contemporary Educational Psychology*, *36*(1), 36–48. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cedpsych.2010.10.002
- Racine, N., Cooke, J. E., Eirich, R., Korczak, D. J., McArthur, B., & Madigan, S. (2020). Child and adolescent mental illness during COVID-19: A rapid review. *Psychiatry Research*, 292(113307), 1–3. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.psychres.2020.113307
- Rao, M., & Rao, D. M. (2021). The mental health of high school students during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Frontiers in Education*, 6(719539). https://doi.org/10.3389/feduc.2021.719539
- Roskos, K., & Neuman, S. B. (2011). The classroom environment: First, last, and always. *The Reading Teacher*, 65(2), 110–114. https://doi.org/10.1002/trtr.01021
- Scanlon, D., & Baker, D. (2012). An accommodations model for the secondary inclusive classroom. *Learning Disability Quarterly*, 35(4), 212– 224. https://doi.org/10.1177/0731948712451261

Schreuder, E., Lebesque, L., & Bottenheft, C. (2016). Healing environments: What design factors really matter according to patients? An exploratory analysis. *HERD: Health Environments Research & Design Journal*, 10(1), 87–

105. https://doi.org/10.1177/1937586716643951

- Shussman, Y. M. (2017). Environmental psychology and classroom design as a tool for promoting meaningful learning. Australian Educational Leader, 39(1), 48–52.
- Simmons, C., Graham, A., & Thomas, N. (2014). Imagining an ideal school for wellbeing: Locating student voice. *Journal of Educational Change*, 16(2), 129– 144. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10833-014-9239-8
- Simons, H. (2009). *Case Study Research in Practice*. SAGE Publications. https://dx.doi.org/10.4135/9781446268322
- Singh, S. (2006). Impact of color on marketing. *Management Decision*, *44*(6), 783–789. https://doi.org/10.1108/00251740610673332
- Smith, S. G. (1994). The essential qualities of a home. *Journal of Environmental Psychology*, *14*(1), 31–46. https://doi.org/10.1016/s0272-4944(05)80196-3
- Stake, R. (1995). Data Gathering. In R. Stake (Ed.), *The art of case study research* (pp. 49–48). Sage.
- Strong-Wilson, T., & Ellis, J. (2007). Children and place: Reggio Emilia's environment as third teacher. *Theory Into Practice*, 46(1), 40–47. https://doi.org/10.1080/00405840709336547

The Math Guru. (2021). *Welcome to The Math Guru!* The Math Guru. https://www.themathguru.ca

Thorburn, M. (2015). Theoretical constructs of well-being and their implications for education. *British Educational Research Journal*, 41(4), 650–665. https://doi.org/10.1002/berj.3169

- Ulrich, R. (1991). Effects of interior design on wellness: Theory and recent scientific research. *Journal of Health Care Interior Design*, 3, 97– 109. https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/10123973/
- Umeda, C., & Deitz, J. (2011). Effects of therapy cushions on classroom behaviors of children with autism spectrum disorder. *The American Journal of Occupational Therapy*, 65(2), 152–159. https://doi.org/10.5014/ajot.2011.000760
- Valiente, C., Swanson, J., & Eisenberg, N. (2011). Linking students' emotions and academic achievement: When and why emotions matter. *Child Development Perspectives*, 6(2), 129–135. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1750-8606.2011.00192.x
- van den Berg, A. E., Wesselius, J. E., Maas, J., & Tanja-Dijkstra, K. (2017). Green walls for a restorative classroom environment: A controlled evaluation study. *Environment and Behavior*, 49(7), 791–813. https://doi.org/10.1177/0013916516667976
- Walden, R. (2015). The school of the future: Conditions and processes contributions of architectural psychology. *Schools for the Future*, 89–148. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-658-09405-8_5
- Weinstein, C. S., & Woolfolk, A. E. (1981). Classroom design and impression formation: A new area for research. *Contemporary Educational Psychology*, *6*(4), 383–386. https://doi.org/10.1016/0361-476x(81)90020-5
- Willis, J., Hughes, H., & Bland, D. (2019). Students reimagining school libraries as spaces of learning and wellbeing. In H. Hughes, J. Franz, & J. Willis (Eds.), *School Spaces for*

Student Wellbeing and Learning (pp. 121–137). Springer. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-981-13-6092-3_7

- Wilson, H. K., & Cotgrave, A. (2016). Factors that influence students' satisfaction with their physical learning environments. *Structural Survey*, 34(3), 256– 275. https://doi.org/10.1108/ss-01-2016-0004
- Xiao, J., Zhao, J., Luo, Z., Liu, F., & Greenwood, D. (2022). The impact of built environment on mental health: A COVID-19 lockdown perspective. *Health & Place*, 77, 1–16. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.healthplace.2022.102889
- Yildirim, K., Akalin-Baskaya, A., & Hidayetoglu, M. (2007). Effects of indoor color on mood and cognitive performance. *Building and Environment*, 42(9), 3233– 3240. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.buildenv.2006.07.037

Appendix A

Sample Founder/Designer Consent Form



INFORMATION AND CONSENT FORM

Study Title: Perceptions of School-related Stress and the Influence of Interior Design in High School Learning Environments: A Qualitative Case Study Researcher: Sara Marks Researcher's Contact Information: Phone: (647) 448-1605 Email: sara.marks@concordia.ca Faculty Supervisor: Dr. Miranda D'Amico Faculty Supervisor's Contact Information: Phone: 514-848-2424 ext. 2040 Email: miranda.damico@concordia.ca

You are being invited to participate in the research study mentioned above. This form provides information about what participating would mean. Please read it carefully before deciding if you want to participate or not. If there is anything you do not understand, or if you want more information, please ask the researcher.

A. PURPOSE

The purpose of the study is to address a gap in educational research by demonstrating how a uniquely designed learning environment might influence high school students' experiences and perceptions of school-related stress. By conducting research in the real-life learning environment of The Math Guru, this study will ideally shed light on the importance of interior design in high school learning environments and highlight areas where improvements can be made to enhance student experiences.

B. PROCEDURES

If you participate, you will be asked to take part in a one-on-one semi-structured interview lasting 60-90 minutes. This interview will take place at The Math Guru tutoring studio and will be focused on your experiences working with high school students who face school-related stress, your approaches to The Math Guru design process, and your advice for other educators. This interview will be audio recorded.

In total, participating in this study will take two hours.

C. RISKS AND BENEFITS

You might face certain risks by participating in this research. These risks include the participation in discussions about one's own (or others) experiences with stress, which may trigger uncomfortable or emotional reactions. For example, you will be asked to describe your clients' experiences with school-related stress and how you see this impacting their learning. There is also a very unlikely potential financial

Page 1 of 4

risk to you as a founder if the study were to frame The Math Guru tutoring studio in a negative light. As such, the name of the centre and all participants will be kept confidential, and only data necessary to achieve the study objectives will be collected (e.g., student participants will not be asked about their relationships with their tutors or their delivery of services).

As the founder of The Math Guru, there is also some potential benefit. Participation in this study may enhance your knowledge regarding the interior design features most appreciated by high school students, allowing you to make more informed decisions when designing the space in the future.

D. CONFIDENTIALITY

We will gather the following information as part of this research:

- □ Information shared during your one-on-one interview (as discussed in the Procedures section)
- Observations while you will not contribute directly to these observations, your participation in day-to-day activities may be observed without researcher interaction.

We will not allow anyone to access the information gathered, except people directly involved in conducting the research. We will only use the information for the purposes of the research described in this form. All data collected will be coded; this means that the information will be identified by a code and the researcher will have a list that links the code to your name.

We will protect the information by storing digital data (e.g., audio recordings) on a password-protected computer and all physical data (e.g., written notes) in a locked filing cabinet in the researcher's home.

We intend to publish the results of the research. However, it will not be possible to identify you in the published results. To allow for potential delays in submission and publication, data will be stored for two years following the study's completion, after which it will be permanently deleted.

F. CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION

You do not have to participate in this research. It is purely your decision. If you do participate, you can stop at any time. You can also ask that the information you provided not be used, and your choice will be respected. If you decide to withdraw from the study, please notify researcher Sara Marks and/or her faculty supervisor (Miranda D'Amico) by email or phone within 30 days of your interview (contact information can be found on page 1 of this form).

There are no negative consequences for not participating, stopping in the middle, or asking us not to use your information.

G. PARTICIPANT'S DECLARATION

I have read and understood this form. I have had the chance to ask questions and any questions have been answered. I agree to participate in this research under the conditions described.

Page 2 of 4

NAME (please print)	 	
SIGNATURE		
DATE		

If you have questions about the scientific or scholarly aspects of this research, please contact the researcher. Their contact information is on page 1. You may also contact their faculty supervisor.

If you have concerns about ethical issues in this research, please contact the Manager, Research Ethics, Concordia University, 514.848.2424 ex. 7481 or oor.ethics@concordia.ca.

Appendix B

Sample Student/Adolescent Assent Form



ADOLESCENT ASSENT FORM FOR PARTICIPATION IN RESEARCH

Study Title: Perceptions of School-related Stress and the Influence of Interior Design in High School Learning Environments: A Qualitative Case Study

Researcher: Sara Marks Researcher's Contact Information: Phone: (647) 448-1605 Email: sara.marks@concordia.ca Faculty Supervisor: Dr. Miranda D'Amico Faculty Supervisor's Contact Information: Phone: 514-848-2424 ext. 2040 Email: miranda.damico@concordia.ca

Dear student,

We are inviting you to participate in a master's level research study to explore how a uniquely designed learning environment can influence high school students' experiences of school-related stress. By conducting research in the real-life learning environment of The Math Guru, this study will ideally shed light on the importance of interior design in high school learning environments and highlight areas where improvements can be made to enhance student experiences.

As a participant, you will be asked to take part in:

- □ A 30-minute student-led tour. You will begin the study by leading the researcher on a tour of The Math Guru, where you will be asked to point out interior design features that you associate with learning, stress, or relaxation.
- A 60-90-minute one-on-one interview. This interview will take place at The Math Guru tutoring studio and will be focused on your experiences of stress related to school, your opinions of the interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio, and how your experiences in traditional learning settings (like your everyday classroom) compare to your experiences at The Math Guru. This interview will be audio recorded.

Potential risk(s): Participation in discussions that have the potential to trigger uncomfortable or emotional reactions. For example, you will be asked to describe your experiences with school-related stress and your ability to cope with this stress. Sharing your experiences with stress and/or mental illness may also lead to feelings of fear or worry concerning possible judgement or stigmatization. As such, to protect your privacy throughout the study, any identifying information, including your name, will not be included. You will also be given the opportunity to review and provide feedback on the final study prior to publication. While all efforts will be made to ensure your privacy (including completing research outside of regular business hours), it cannot be guaranteed that your participation in a student-led tour and/or interview will not be witnessed by an outside party and that they will respect your confidentiality.

Potential benefit(s): By taking part in this study, you will have the opportunity to share your experiences with school-related stress and perspectives on interior design, with the potential for you to develop a greater understanding of how interior design affects your learning and your preferences for interior design in different learning environments.

This study will collect the following information:

- □ Information shared during your student-led tour and one-on-one interview.
- Observations while you will not contribute directly to these observations, your participation in day-to-day activities may be observed without researcher interaction.

We will protect the information by storing digital data (e.g., audio recordings) on a password-protected computer and physical data (e.g., written notes) in a locked filing cabinet in the researcher's home. To allow for potential delays in submission and publication, data will be stored for two years following the study's completion, after which it will be permanently deleted.

Conditions of participation: You do not have to participate in this research. It is purely your decision. If you do participate, you can stop at any time. You can also ask that the information you provided not be used, and your choice will be respected. If you decide to withdraw from the study, please notify researcher Sara Marks and/or her faculty supervisor (Miranda D'Amico) by email or phone within 30 days of your interview (contact information can be found on page 1 of this form). There are no negative consequences for not participating, stopping in the middle, or asking us not to use your information.

If you and/or your parent(s)/guardian(s) have any questions about this study, they can contact the researcher and/or faculty supervisor by email or phone using the contact information on page 1 of this form.

Would you like to participate in this research study? I consent to participate in the student-led tour AND one-on-one interview. No, I don't want to do this.				
NAME (please print)				

Page 2 of 2

DATE

Appendix C

Sample Parental Consent Form



PARENTAL INFORMATION AND CONSENT FORM

Study Title: Perceptions of School-related Stress and the Influence of Interior Design in High School Learning Environments: A Qualitative Case Study **Researcher:** Sara Marks

Researcher's Contact Information: Phone: (647) 448-1605 Email: sara.marks@concordia.ca Faculty Supervisor: Dr. Miranda D'Amico Faculty Supervisor's Contact Information: Phone: 514-848-2424 ext. 2040 Email: miranda.damico@concordia.ca

Dear Parent(s)/Guardian(s),

Your child is being invited to participate in the research study mentioned above. This form provides information about what their participation would mean. Please read it carefully before deciding if you want your child to participate or not. If there is anything you do not understand, or if you want more information, please ask the researcher.

A. PURPOSE

The purpose of the research is to address a gap in educational research by demonstrating how a uniquely designed learning environment might influence high school students' experiences and perceptions of school-related stress. By conducting research in the real-life learning environment of The Math Guru, this study will ideally shed light on the importance of interior design in high school learning environments and highlight areas where improvements can be made to enhance student experiences.

B. PROCEDURES

- □ Student-led tour lasting up to 30 minutes. Your child will begin the study by leading the primary investigator on a tour of The Math Guru, where they will be asked to point out interior design features that they associate with learning, stress, or relaxation.
- One-on-one semi-structured interview lasting 60-90 minutes. This interview will take place at The Math Guru tutoring studio and will be focused on your child's experiences of stress related to school, their opinions of the interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio, and how their experiences in traditional learning settings (like their everyday classroom) compare to their experiences at The Math Guru. This interview will be audio recorded.

In total, participating in this study will take two hours.

Page 1 of 3

C. RISKS AND BENEFITS

Your child may face certain risks by participating in this research. These risks include the participation in discussions that have the potential to trigger uncomfortable or emotional reactions. For example, your child will be asked to describe their experiences with school-related stress and their ability to cope with this stress. Additionally, when discussing their experiences with stress and/or mental illness, your child may encounter fear or worry concerning possible judgement or stigmatization. To protect your child's privacy throughout the study, any identifying information, including their name, will not be included. To further ensure accuracy and confidentiality, your child will also be given the opportunity to review and provide feedback on the study's findings prior to publication. While all efforts will be made to ensure your child's privacy (including completing research outside of regular business hours), it cannot be guaranteed that your child's participation in a student-led tour and/or interview will not be witnessed by an outside party and that they will respect their confidentiality.

As a student participant, there is also some potential benefit. By taking part in this study, your child will have the opportunity to share their experiences with school-related stress and perspectives on interior design, with the potential for them to develop a greater understanding of how interior design affects their learning and their preferences for interior design in different learning environments.

D. CONFIDENTIALITY

We will gather the following information as part of this research:

- □ Information shared during your child's student-led tour and one-on-one interview (as discussed in the Procedures section)
- Observations while your child will not contribute directly to these observations, their participation in day-to-day activities may be observed without researcher interaction.

We will not allow anyone to access the information gathered, except people directly involved in conducting the research. We will only use the information for the purposes of the research described in this form. The information gathered will be coded; this means that the information will be identified by a code and the researcher will have a list that links the code to your child's name.

We will protect the information by storing digital data (e.g., audio recordings) on a password-protected computer and physical data (e.g., written notes) in a locked filing cabinet in the researcher's home.

We intend to publish the results of the research. However, it will not be possible to identify your child in the published results. To allow for potential delays in submission and publication, data will be stored for two years following the study's completion, after which it will be permanently deleted.

F. CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION

Your child does not have to participate in this research. It is purely your and their decision. If your child does participate, they can stop at any time. You or your child can also ask that the information they provided

Page 2 of 3

not be used, and this choice will be respected. If you or your child decide to withdraw from the study, please notify researcher Sara Marks and/or her faculty supervisor (Miranda D'Amico) by email or phone within 30 days of their interview (contact information can be found on page 1 of this form).

Your child will not face any negative consequences for not participating, stopping in the middle, or asking us not to use their information.

G. PARTICIPANT'S DECLARATION

I have read and understood this form. I have had the chance to ask questions and any questions have been answered. I agree to my child's participation in this research under the conditions described.

NAME OF CHILD (please print)	
NAME OF PARENT/GUARDIAN (please print)	
SIGNATURE OF PARENT/GUARDIAN	

DATE _____

If you have questions about the scientific or scholarly aspects of this research, please contact the researcher. Their contact information is on page 1. You may also contact their faculty supervisor.

If you have concerns about ethical issues in this research, please contact the Manager, Research Ethics, Concordia University, 514.848.2424 ex. 7481 or oor.ethics@concordia.ca.

Appendix D

Student Interview Guide

Experiences with School-Related Stress:

- 1. What is your name? What school do you go to and what grade are you in?
- 2. How would you describe your experience of stress at school? What types of situations tend to make you feel the most stress?
- 3. Are there certain places or spaces at school where you notice you experience more stress?
- 4. What strategies do you use to cope with school-related stress?

Comparing Learning Environments:

- 1. How long have you been attending tutoring sessions at The Math Guru?
- 2. How would you describe your experiences with learning at The Math Guru in comparison to your everyday classroom?
- 3. How does your experience of school-related stress at The Math Guru compare to your experiences in your everyday classroom?
- 4. Describe the interior design of your everyday classroom how does it differ from The Math Guru? What do you prefer about the design of each environment? Are there any design elements in either setting that you find particularly distracting or stressful?

The Interior Design of The Math Guru:

- 1. When you first started tutoring at The Math Guru, what were your first impressions of the interior design of the space? How did you feel entering this space compared to when you walk into your everyday classroom?
- 2. How do you think The Math Guru's interior design impacts your learning experience?
- 3. Do you think the interior design of The Math Guru impacts your experiences of school-related stress in any way?

Ideal Learning Environment:

- 1. If you had the opportunity to redesign your school's classrooms to reduce stress and enhance learning, what changes would you make?
- 2. Are there any elements of The Math Guru that you think would benefit the interior design of your everyday classroom?
- 3. Are there any interior design elements whether that be lighting, paint, décor, plants, furniture, or anything else that you have in your home or have seen elsewhere that you think would make either The Math Guru or your everyday classroom a less stressful environment?

Appendix E

Educator Interview Guide

- 1. Can you please tell me a little bit about your professional background and how this led you to become the founder and interior designer of The Math Guru tutoring studio?
- 2. Where did your inspiration for the interior design of The Math Guru come from? What were your specific design goals, and why did you choose them?
- 3. Do you think that interior design can play a role in addressing or alleviating school-related stress? In your design process, did you consider how the space might impact high school students facing school-related stress?
- 4. Can you tell me a little bit about your experiences working with high school students who experience school-related stress? How have you seen this stress manifest in the students you work with?
- 5. In your experience, how does the interior design of The Math Guru influence student stress? Can you give me an example of a specific design element that you feel has had a positive impact on student stress levels?
- 6. How do you think the design of The Math Guru compares to other learning environments in terms of stress reduction or learning enhancement?
- 7. What recommendations would you give to other educators or designers who are looking to create learning environments that support students' well-being and reduce stress?

Appendix F

A Comprehensive Guide to The Math Guru's Homelike Interior Design

A COMPREHENSIVE GUIDE TO THE MATH GURU'S HOMELIKE INTERIOR DESIGN

This guide, inspired by the homelike interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio, and supported by extensive existing research, aims to inspire educators, designers, and policymakers to consider more creative, well-being-focused redesigns in their learning environments. When considering these guidelines, it is recommended that educators consider how each aspect of interior design – from colour scheme selection to spatial dynamics – can be incorporated not just functionally and aesthetically but also in direct partnership with the pedagogical preferences and learning needs of students (Miller, 2019).

- 1. Deepening Engagement and Interest through Meaningful Décor: Incorporate décor into the learning environment to engage students more actively, as The Math Guru does with its artistically framed whiteboards and math-themed decorations. This approach, rooted in design relevance, can transform the physical environment, not only enhancing visual aesthetics but also potentially inspiring academic interest and making learning more appealing and engaging (Godwin & Kaur, 2021; Cheryan et al., 2014; Fisher et al., 2014).
- 2. Fostering Satisfaction and Calm through Color Usage: Adopt a colour palette that blends calming pastels with vibrant accents. As seen in The Math Guru, this strategic use of colour can create a warm and welcoming ambiance, with the potential for positive impacts on students' emotional experiences and learning interests (Barrett et al., 2015; Küller et al., 2009; Walden, 2015).
- **3. Promoting Positive Emotions through Indoor Plant Incorporation:** Mirror The Math Guru's use of greenery, which resonates with theories on the restorative benefits of nature and promotes aesthetic value while also enhancing students' moods. Even small, strategically placed plants might help to revitalize the learning environment and support enhancements in student well-being by making the environment more enjoyable and potentially even stress-reducing (Fjeld, 2000; Han, 2009; van den Berg et al., 2017).
- 4. Encouraging Confidence and Collaboration through Adaptable and Unconventional Spatial Dynamics: Design adaptable, student-centred environments inspired by The Math Guru's homelike layout that caters to academic support as well as casual conversation. Even in limited spaces, creating small zones dedicated to specific learning activities can

help boost student confidence and interest in collaboration (Benade, 2019; Chandler, 2009; Kariippanon et al., 2017).

- **5. Providing Physical and Psychological Comfort through Diverse Seating Selection:** Offer students more control over their learning and comfort by embracing The Math Guru's approach to furniture and incorporate a diverse mix of seating options, such as dining chairs, armchairs, and couches. This design strategy, resonating with preferences for physical comfort and fostering a sense of autonomy over the learning environment, allows students to choose a seat most optimal for their learning and, as such, can help to promote focus and empowerment in learning, (Cornell, 2002; Kariippanon et al., 2017; Umeda & Deitz, 2011).
- 6. Supporting Relaxation and Social Interaction through Living Room-Style Common Areas: Create common areas for relaxation and social interaction inspired by The Math Guru's living-room-style seating area. By promoting open communication and casual conversation, these areas offer opportunities for informal interaction that resonate with high school students social-focused coping strategies (Anniko et al., 2018; Arndt, 2012; Ellis et al., 2020; Maich et al., 2018; Scanlon & Baker, 2012).

Appendix G

Executive Summary

Background of Study: Recognizing the profound influence of the physical learning environment on student well-being and learning perceptions, this case study explores the potential relationship between interior design and school-related stress. In doing so, it acknowledges the evolving focus on creating learning environments that are not just functional but also psychologically supportive.

Purpose of Study: The aim of this study is to explore high school students' perceptions of school-related stress within the unique interior design of The Math Guru tutoring studio. It seeks to understand how The Math Guru's interior design, which significantly departs from conventional educational settings, might influence students' well-being and learning perceptions and experiences.

Methods This study follows a qualitative case study research design, featuring data collected through in-depth, semi-structured interviews, digital photography, and on-site observations. The participants include the founder of The Math Guru and three high school student clients. Collected data was interpreted using a thematic analysis method to provide a rich understanding of The Math Guru's interior design approach and its potential influence on the well-being and learning perceptions of students.

Findings & Discussion: This case study found that The Math Guru's physical learning environment, characterized by homelike interior design elements and approaches, significantly contributes to fostering an atmosphere that is less stressful for its students compared to their standard high school settings. The unique design elements of The Math Guru were perceived positively by students, fostering an inviting and relaxed, yet still engaging and supportive learning environment. The insights from this study underscore the importance of thoughtful interior design in educational contexts. The Math Guru's approach aligns with contemporary theories emphasizing the necessity of rethinking learning environment design to prioritize student well-being and engagement.

Conclusion: This study advocates for secondary educational institutions and learning environments to consider interior design as a key factor in enhancing student engagement and addressing school-related stress. It illustrates The Math Guru's homelike design approach as an inspiring model for future learning environments, promoting spaces that are not only aesthetically pleasing but also conducive to learning and supportive of student mental health.